
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Monday, October 27, 2014

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M.

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney 

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.
  

3. Roll Call.

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of October 13, 2014.

Information        5. Monthly Operations Report for September 2014 (to be reviewed by the Budget & 
Finance Committee).

6. Written Communications.

7. Oral Communications.  
The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Motion 8. Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 3 with GSE 
Construction Company for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project (to be 
reviewed by the Construction Committee).   

Motion 9. Approving the GIS JPA FY15 Budget Adjustment (to be reviewed by the Budget & 
Finance Committee). 

Motion 10. Accepting Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 (reviewed by the 
Audit Committee).

Information 11.    Information Items:
a. Check Register.
b. Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of October 16, 2014.

Page 1 of 153



c. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
Committee).

d. Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).
e. First Quarterly Report on Capital Improvement Program for FY 15 (to be reviewed 

by the Construction Committee).

Information  12. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Construction Committee – scheduled for Wednesday, 10/22/14 at 4:30 p.m.
b. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 10/23/14 at 4:30 p.m.

Information  13.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

Information       14. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.

15. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Board Workshop – USD Video               
in the Boardroom on Monday, November 3, 2014 at 6:30 p.m.

16. Adjournment - The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, November 10, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 2 of 153



NOTICE OF       All meetings will be held in 
COMMITTEE MEETING     the General Manager’s Office 

BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 27, 2014 

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi) 
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy) 

Construction Committee, Wednesday, October 22, 2014 at 4:30 p.m. 

8.  Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 3 with GSE 
Construction Company for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project. 

10d. Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects. 

10e.  First Quarterly Report on Capital Improvement Program for FY15.  

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, October 23, 2014 at 4:30 p.m. 

5. Monthly Operations Report for September 2014. 

9. Approving the GIS JPA FY15 Budget Adjustment. 

10c. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report. 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.

Page 3 of 153



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

October 13, 2014

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
  Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager
  Dave Livingston, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager
  Ric Pipkin, Treatment & Disposal Services Coach 
  Paul Johnson, Store Keeper II
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
  Carol Rice, Former Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
   
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 22, 2014.

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Approve the Minutes of the Board 
of Directors’ Meeting held September 22, 2014. Motion carried unanimously. 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS.

There were no written communications. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS.
  
There were no oral communications.

RESOLUTION NO. 2740, RECOGNIZING GENERAL MANAGER RICHARD B. CURRIE 
FOR 23 YEARS OF OUTSTANDING SERVICE. 

Page 4 of 153



It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Adopt Resolution No. 2740, 
Recognizing General Manager Richard B. Currie for 23 Years of Outstanding Service.  Motion 
carried unanimously.

APPROVING THE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE, MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND SEIU LOCAL 1021, JUNE 6, 2013 - 
AUGUST 31, 2016, AND UNCLASSIFIED STAFF COMPENSATION DOCUMENTS.

The Personnel Committee reviewed this item.  The publicly available pay schedule, mandated 
by CalPERS, is designed to ensure consistency between CalPERS employers and enhance 
the disclosure and transparency of public employee compensation.  Rich Cortés stated the 
publicly available pay schedule was revised to capture adjustments made to unclassified 
employee pay ranges per the July 2014, unclassified salary survey and a revision of the salary 
range for Maintenance Manager based on the most recent salary survey.  The publicly 
available pay schedule will be effective August 24, 2014.  

Rich Cortés stated the SEIU MOU was recently completed to include all tentative agreements 
reached between the District and SEIU Local 1021, as approved by the Board on June 6, 2013.  
There were no changes to the Unclassified Staff Compensation Plan.  Rich Cortés stated the 
updated Unclassified Employees Rules and Regulations had been reviewed and approved by 
the Executive Team. 

It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Director Handley, to Approve the Publicly
Available Pay Schedule, Memorandum of Understanding Between the District and SEIU Local 
1021 June 6, 2013 – August 31, 2016, and Unclassified Staff Compensation Documents.  
Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVING AN ADDITION TO THE FY15 CIP BUDGET FOR THE WARM SPRINGS 
LATERALS PROJECT.

The Budget & Finance Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated the District was 
contacted in August by a plumbing contractor unable to determine the cause of recurring 
clogging of two sewer laterals located at the corner of Mission Boulevard and Warm Springs 
Boulevard.  The District discovered the aforementioned laterals were connected to an old 8-
inch diameter sewer main that had been abandoned when the new 18-inch diameter sewer 
main was installed by contractor K.J. Woods during the Upper Warren Avenue Sewer Project 
in 2000.  District staff determined the Upper Warren Avenue Sewer Project, designed by GHD, 
contained a discrepancy regarding the number of laterals to be relocated to the new 18-inch 
sewer main.

McGuire and Hester (M&H) completed connection of the two sewer laterals to the 18-inch 
diameter sewer main on September 10, 2014, per an existing agreement with the District for 
emergency services. The M&H submitted cost of $132,000 is undergoing staff review. 
Universal Maintenance submitted cost for sewer lateral clearing and investigation work for 

Page 5 of 153



approximately $50,000. Staff estimates other project costs, including an encroachment permit 
and associated inspection fees with the City of Fremont, to be $15,000.  The total estimated 
cost for the project is $200,000.  

It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to Approve the Warm Springs 
Laterals Project without altering the budget.  Motion carried unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register. All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Unclassified Staff Benefits and Upcoming and Unscheduled Board Workshop Topics.
Paul Eldredge stated Director Handley requested a future discussion item or workshop to 
discuss benefits for Unclassified Staff, specifically time off.  The Board directed staff to prepare 
a workshop to discuss Unclassified Staff time off.

Paul Eldredge provided information regarding unscheduled workshop topics.  Director Handley 
requested the Unclassified Staff time off workshop be scheduled in the near future. Paul 
Eldredge stated the Sewer Service Charge Rate workshop may be scheduled for December 
or January, and the Check in with the General Manager will likely be scheduled for December.

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:
The Budget & Finance and Personnel Committees met.

  
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT.

  
Safety-Kleen Systems has been identified as the source of recent hydrocarbon 
discharges.  Staff recently met with Safety-Kleen representatives, and conducted a 
follow up conference call on October 13, 2014.  Safety-Kleen staff are in the process of 
developing new safety and testing protocols.  Safety-Kleen is effectively shut down at 
this time due to their decision not to explore alternative discharge options citing cost 
and logistical challenges.  Pending the results of the test conducted October 13, 2014, 
Safety-Kleen may begin discharging within the next week.  Paul Eldredge stated an 
industrial hygienist will be retained by the District to determine if any health challenges 
were created by this issue, and if additional protocols need to be in place. 
Paul Eldredge noted Treatment and Disposal Service Night Coach Ric Pipkin was in 
attendance representing the workgroup
The Collection Systems crew recently discovered two category 3 sanitary sewer 
overflows caused by leaking joints.  One was the result of an odor complaint from a 
resident, the second was found by the TV crew, and both were repaired using a 
trenchless repair system.  Staff believe the leaks may be due to extremely dry soil 
caused by the current drought.  Both incidents will be reported in the standard reporting 
period.

Page 6 of 153



Staff met with the residential builder in Newark for a status update.  The developer 
stated they are presently engaged in discussions with Cargill regarding access. Staff 
are developing force main options.
Wilson Wong from the FMC group is now a Certified Cathodic Protection Inspector, 
which should save the District approximately $20,000/year.
Recently hired Painter Troy Gaskins began work on October 6, 2014.
47 individuals will participate in the performance test for Collection Systems worker to 
be conducted October 17 - 18, 2014. 
Manager interviews are scheduled to begin next week.
CalPERS audit began October 13, 2014, and a report should be received in six months.
The 2014 Employee Recognition BBQ will be held October 14, 2014.
The District will host the Maintenance Superintendents Association San Francisco Bay 
Area Chapter 2014 Vendor Equipment & Tradeshow on October 16, 2014.

  
OTHER BUSINESS:

Anjali Lathi asked if a Board Workshop will be scheduled for Monday, December 15, 2014.  
Paul Eldredge stated a Board Workshop may be scheduled for said date.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 7:47 p.m. to a Private Lateral Study Board Workshop in the 
Boardroom on Monday, October 20, 2014 at 6:30 p.m.

The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, October 
27, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.

Page 7 of 153



 

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: October 20, 2014

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of October 27, 2014 
Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for September, 2014 

Background

Attached is the September 2014 Operations Report.  Staff is available to answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report.

Table of Contents

General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge GM   
Business Services     Rich Cortes  BS   
Collection Services     Andy Morrison CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services/FMC  Dave Livingston T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Robert Simonich FMC

Recommendation

File Report.  

 

Page 8 of 153



GENERAL MANAGER’S SUMMARY

Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during September 2014. 

ODOR COMPLAINTS: The District received two odor complaints for the month of September.  
Both complaints were in the City of Fremont. Both odor complaints were investigated with no 
odors found.  The homeowner at the second location indicated that a cleanout was missing a cap.  
It was suggested to the homeowner that the cap should be replaced.  During the month there 
were periods of strong odors coming from the salt point, but no complaints received.

SAFETY: There were no injuries during September.  The oily waste at the Boyce pump station 
increased creating concerns of exposure for our employees.  The exposure investigation and 
documentation continues.  We had two near miss reports and took corrective action to prevent 
future injuries.  Early in the month, we had a fire alarm that evacuated the facility.  We identified 
an error with the alarm operation and had it corrected.  The alarm did give us a good surprise 
evacuation drill.

FINANCIAL:   
Staff participated in demos of timekeeping systems. 
An Estate Planning seminar was presented to staff by ICMA. 
PERS notified the District that it would perform an audit on payroll and benefits in October.
Financial Auditor completed their field audit.

COLLECTION SYSTEM:
One Category 3 SSO started in September and ended in October.  It will be reported as 
an October SSO, however we cannot count September as a No Spill month.  All of the 
water was recovered from the storm drain and returned to the sanitary sewer.
We started our annual root control program with cutting in September and foaming starts 
in October. (section D & A this year)
We presented Succession Planning to the California Alliance for Sewer System 
Excellence (CASSE) and Collection System of the Future (CSOTF) benchmarking groups.
We started recruitment for CSW I and CS Manager.

PLANT OPERATIONS:
Completed the Anitamox pilot study (successful at removing approximately 80% of the 
ammonia from the solids dewatering centrate).
Completed New Employee Orientation for our Senior Process Engineer, Connie Li.
Provided a plant tour for engineering students from Chabot College.

PROJECTS: Updates of selected projects:
Cogeneration Project – Contractor began testing the new engine generator and digester 
gas conditioning systems. Isolation and abandonment of old gas conditioning system is 
next.
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Process piping and electrical 
equipment submittals have been submitted.  Contractor began excavation for process 
piping west of the building. 
Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement – Installation of mainline sewer, manholes, and laterals is 
nearing completion.  Abandonment of old sewer and surface restoration is next.

GM-1 
Page 9 of 153



Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – City of Fremont and Newark Pump Station 
sewer bypassing and CIPP lining is complete.  Willow St. site (Newark) is next.

STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
Recruitments and Selection

Regina McEvoy began work as the Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary.
Dr. Connie Li came to the District from Michigan to fill the newly created Senior 
Process Engineer position.
Mike Farsai started work as a Plant Operator III Trainee.

Training
HRA worked with trainer and Technical Training Program Manager to develop 
Preventing Workplace Violence training; HR staff attended the training.
HRA presented a training session on Human Resources policies to several new 
employees.
HR staff worked with Finance staff to offer a one-hour session on Estate Planning, 
which was very well attended.

Other
HR and Finance staff met to gather information for the CalPERS audit.
HRA and HR Analyst attended the HR Forum to share best practices with other 
special district HR staff.

G.M. ACTIVITIES: For the month of September, the GM was involved in the following:
I got married and was out of the office September 3 - 16th. 
The transition between Rich Currie and I took place on September 16th. 
A joint Board of Directors meeting between Alameda County Water District and Union 
Sanitary District took place at the Union Sanitary District offices on September 25.
The Board of Directors held a retreat on September 29th and was attended by the new and 
outgoing General Managers.  The Board provided the incoming General Manager with 
some direction and goals for the upcoming year.
Attended the Union City State of the City Address on September 30th. 
Said farewell to Rich Currie at his retirement party on September 30th. 

GM-1 
Page 10 of 153



ODOR REPORT 
September 2014 

During the recording period from September 01, 2014 through September 30, 2014, there were  
two odor related service requests received by the District. 
City:  Fremont 

1. Complaint Details: 
Date: 9/25/2014 Time:   1:10 pm 
Location:   PERALTA BL Reported By: Len Hall 
Wind (from): North West Wind Speed:  8 mph 
Temperature:  67 Degrees F Weather: Clear

Response and Follow-up: 
Inspected USD manholes and the storm drain inlets in the parking lot and street.  We found no odor.   

 We told the complainant to call us back if the odor returns.   

2. Complaint Details: 
Date: 9/26/2014 Time:  10:00 am 
Location:   MORRISON CANYON RD Reported By: Mike
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  5 mph 
Temperature:  64 Degrees F Weather: Some Clouds 

Response and Follow-up: 
Inspected the sewer manholes and drain inlets adjacent to the residence and found no  
odor. The homeowner informed us of a clean out that was missing a cap. We told him to put a cap on 

  the clean out and call us back if the odor returns. 

Page 11 of 153



#

!

#

[

[

#

[

#

[

!

#

!

#

!

#

[

#[

#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
October 2013 to September 2014

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: September 2014

Odor Complaints: Oct. 2013 to Aug. 2014
No odor found (2)

Odor found, not related to USD (4)

Odor found, USD resolved (6)

No odor found (8)

#

!

[

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)

[ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

2. No odor found

1. No odor found

Page 12 of 153



H
O
U
R
S
 
W
O
R
K
E
D
 
A
N
D
 
L
E
A
V
E
 
T
I
M
E
 
B
Y
 
W
O
R
K
 
G
R
O
U
P

J
u
n
e
 
2
8
,
 
2
0
1
4
 
t
o
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
9
,
 
2
0
1
4

R
eg

.
To

ta
l

H
is

to
ric

al
 F

Y
14

D
IV

IS
IO

N
H

ou
rs

Lt
 D

ut
y

O
/T

Le
av

es
*

S
ic

k
S

TD
W

C
S

ic
k

S
TD

W
C

A
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 

o
f
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s

G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
 
S
t
a
f
f

92
1

35
9

6
85

1
2
9

28
%

0.
5%

1.
7%

B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

9,
42

2
4

1,
61

9
15

3
60

4
14

15
%

1.
4%

1.
6%

0.
5%

C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f

V
a
c
a
n
t
 
P
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
(
1
)

T
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

12
,4

58
34

1,
59

2
16

1
1,

03
9

23
8

7
11

%
1.

1%
3.

4%
0.

8%

C
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

11
,5

27
1,

31
8

2,
95

2
80

8
10

9
36

1,
79

1
71

8
1

20
%

5.
6%

0.
7%

0.
2%

2.
5%

0.
4%

0.
2%

H
o
u
r
s
 
W
o
r
k
e
d
 
P
e
r

W
e
e
k
 
P
e
r
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
(
2
)

T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
&
 
D
i
s
p
o
s
a
l

9,
81

4
28

4
1,

22
6

23
1,

34
4

40
8

3
5
.
3
1

11
%

0.
2%

2.
0%

0.
3%

F
M
C

8,
53

1
49

5
1,

66
9

32
2

11
1,

01
9

74
10

7
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
e
d
 
A
v
e
r
a
g
e

16
%

3.
2%

0.
1%

3.
1%

0.
2%

0.
1%

A
n
n
u
a
l
 
S
i
c
k
 
L
e
a
v
e

P
e
r
 
E
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
(
3
)

T
o
t
a
l
s

52
,6

73
2,

13
5

9,
41

8
1,

47
3

10
9

46
5,

88
2

1,
45

2
10

8
4
9
.
3
6

%
84

.8
%

3.
4%

15
.2

%
2.

4%
0.

2%
0.

1%
2.

4%
0.

5%
1.

3%

(
1
)
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
v
a
c
a
n
c
i
e
s
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
:
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
(
0
)
,
 
C
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
(
1
)
,
 
F
M
C
 
(
1
)
,
 
T
&
D
 
(
2
)
,
 
T
S
 
(
3
)

 

(
2
)
 
 
A
n
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
3
 
w
e
e
k
s
 
v
a
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
1
1
 
h
o
l
i
d
a
y
s
,
 
2
 
H
E
C
 
d
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
4
0
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
o
f
 
s
i
c
k
 
l
e
a
v
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
 
a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
3
4
.
9
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
w
e
e
k
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
f
o
u
r
 
w
e
e
k
s
 
v
a
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
3
4
.
2
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
w
e
e
k
.

(
3
)
 
 
T
a
r
g
e
t
 
g
o
a
l
 
f
o
r
 
s
i
c
k
 
l
e
a
v
e
 
i
n
c
e
n
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
i
s
 
4
7
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
p
e
r
 
y
e
a
r
.

P
ag

e 
13

 o
f 1

53



Accomplishments

The recruitment for Assistant to the General Manager / Board Secretary was completed; Regina McEvoy was 
hired on 9/8/2014. 
The recruitment for Sr. Process Engineer was completed; Connie Li was hired on 9/15/2014. 
The recruitment for Plant Operator III Trainee was completed; Mike Farsai was hired on 9/22/2014. 
Human Resources Administrator worked with trainer and Technical Training Program Manager to develop 
Preventing Workplace Violence training; HR staff attended the training. 
Human Resources Administrator presented HR policy review to several new employees. 
Human Resources Administrator and HR Analyst attended the HR Forum to share best practices with other 
special district HR staff. 
HR staff worked with Finance staff to offer a one-hour session on Estate Planning, which was very well 
attended.
HR and Finance staff met to gather information for the CalPERS audit. 
The Organizational Performance Program Manager (OPPM) scripted Team BSC Refresher and Organizational 
Orientation activities to ensure consistent message delivery in future sessions. 
The OPPM participated in Training Module Review meeting and established new BSC targets for FMC, TPO 
and CS; clarified definition of “complete” and standardized across the work groups. 
The OPPM assembled, chartered and now facilitate (as member) new Portal Governance Task Force. 
The OPPM attended Northern Regional Training Conference; shared information with team from the 21st

Century Leadership Strategies seminar. 
The OPPM delivered Organizational Orientations to new Assistant to the GM, Senior Process Engineer, Plant 
Operator III Trainee. 
The OPPM continued participation in San Francisco Bay Section of CWEA Professional Development 
Committee (PDC) (replacing Larry Simmers as USD representative on that Committee). 
The OPPM delivered BSC Refresher to the EC team. 
The OPPM worked with new GM and Communications Coordinator to review and streamline Outreach 
Program measures and objectives. 
The OPPM met with Quality Star Points and Coaches from multiple teams to share tools and identify FY 15 
process improvement projects. 
The OPPM participated in full day MS Access training to develop new skills for driving additional efficiencies. 

Performance Measures 
AVERAGE MONTHLY YIELD 

      

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 1Yr Rolling Avg Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
Activities Report 
September 2014 

Page 14 of 153



BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2015    Year-to-date as of 9/30/14 25% of year elapsed
Unaudited

Revenues % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/14

  Capacity Fees $2,700,000 $1,573,215 58% $3,315,007
  Sewer Service Charges 47,448,461 1,082 0% 45,139,420
  Operating 848,500 104,759 12% 1,072,242
  Interest 299,000 94,208 32% 385,844
  Misc. (incl. LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 1,994,200 105,640 5% 297,776

 Subtotal Revenues $53,290,161 $1,878,904 4% $50,210,289

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener) 3,390,000 0 0% 2,424,739

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $56,680,161 $1,878,904 3% $52,635,028

Expenses % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Prog.
       Capacity Projects $3,240,000 $492,745 15% $5,592,023
       Renewal & Repl. Projects 11,632,500 2,110,143 18% 14,195,068
  Operating 32,659,214 6,859,065 21% 30,751,966
  Special Projects 1,708,478 25,548 1% 775,361
  Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 543,540 135,885 25% 462,852
  Vehicle & Equipment 1,057,700 0 0% 784,695
  Information Systems 1,216,000 76,387 6% 848,449
  Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 144 0% 197,237
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000 11,715 167% 5,124
  County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 0 0% 105,559
  Misc. (A/R write-off) 0 0 0% 1,343
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans (Irv.,Wilw,LHH,Cdr,NPS, Sub1,Boyc,Prim Cl) 3,127,389 1,319,228 42% 4,675,361

Total Expenses $55,547,821 $11,030,860 20% $58,395,038

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $1,132,340 ($9,151,956) ($5,760,010)

Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $170,900 $27,450 16% $166,233
General Manager/Admin. 1,036,505 278,587 27% 1,153,217
Business Services 4,666,100 1,059,163 23% 4,416,832
Collection Services 5,954,753 1,287,258 22% 5,460,336
Technical Services 5,247,562 1,097,022 21% 4,850,139
Treatment & Disposal Services 9,980,700 2,062,610 21% 9,739,655
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,602,694 1,046,975 19% 4,965,555

Total $32,659,214 $6,859,065 21% $30,751,966

Operating Expenses by Type % of Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $22,966,422 $4,996,937 22% (27%)* $21,125,985
Repairs & Maintenance 1,828,375 312,890 17% 1,615,427
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,453,720 442,349 18% 2,442,617
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,217,697 1,082,087 21% 5,493,010
Fixed Assets 193,000 24,802 13% 74,927

Total $32,659,214 $6,859,065 21% $30,751,966

* Personnel Budget Target

Page 15 of 153



2,700,000

47,448,461

848,500 299,000
5,384,2001,573,215

1,082 104,759 94,208 105,640
$0

$5,000,000
$10,000,000
$15,000,000
$20,000,000
$25,000,000
$30,000,000
$35,000,000
$40,000,000
$45,000,000
$50,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service Charges   Operating   Interest   Misc. (incl. SRF proceeds,
LAVWMA)

USD Revenues 

Budget

Actual

14,872,500

32,666,214

1,708,478 543,540
1,057,700 1,216,000

250,000
3,233,389

2,602,888

6,870,780

25,548 135,885 0 76,387 144 1,319,228
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

  CIP   Operating/PRTM   Spec. Proj.   Retiree Med.   Vehic & Equip.   Info. Systems   Plant&P.S.   Debt+CntyFee+Misc

Total USD Expenses

Budget

Actual

170,900 1,036,505

4,666,100

5,954,753
5,247,562

9,980,700

5,602,694

27,450 278,587 1,059,163
1,287,258

1,097,022
2,062,610

1,046,975

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board GM/Admin. BS CS TS T&D FMC

ECB Expenses by Work Group

Budget
Actual

22,966,422

1,828,375 2,453,720

5,217,697

193,000

4,996,937

312,890 442,349 1,082,087
24,802

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Operating Supplies &
Matls

Outside Services Fixed Assets

ECB Expenses by Type

Budget Actual

Page 16 of 153



Maturity 
Range 

Face 
Amount/Shares 

YTM @ 
Cost Cost Value 

Days To 
Maturity 

% of 
Portfolio Market Value Book Value 

Duration To 
Maturity 

0-1 Month 245,000.00 0.400 245,000.00 17 1.42 245,024.21 245,000.00 0.05 

1-3 Months 2,480,000.00 0.437 2,480,624.00 46 14.41 2,481,121.62 2,480,031.75 0.12 

3-6 Months 3,480,000.00 0.773 3,641,300.00 137 21.15 3,523,570.97 3,517,107.67 0.38 

6-9 Months 240,000.00 0.523 239,918.40 254 1.39 240,320.95 239,961.19 0.70 

9-12 Months 2,305,000.00 0.570 2,339,693.20 279 13.59 2,324,595.53 2,320,355.51 0.76 

1-2 Years 8,240,000.00 0.454 8,271,420.00 541 48.04 8,260,229.72 8,258,025.70 1.47 

Total / Average 16,990,000.00 0.535 17,217,955.60 337 100 17,074,863.00 17,060,481.82 0.92

All Portfolio Holdings Distribution by Asset Class

Operating Fund Holdings Distribution by Asset Class

Operating Fund Maturity Distribution

Page 17 of 153



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
- 

H
ol

d
in

g
s

R
ep

or
t 

Fo
rm

at
: 

B
y 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

G
ro

up
 B

y:
 A

ss
et

 C
la

ss
P

o
rt

fo
lio

/
R

ep
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
: 

A
ll 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s

A
s 

o
f 

9
/

3
0

/
2

0
1

4

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

TM
 @

 
C

os
t

N
ex

t 
C

al
l 

D
at

e
M

at
u

ri
ty

 
D

at
e

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

A
g

en
ci

es

FH
LM

C
 0

.5
 6

/2
0/

20
16

-
14

31
34

G
4N

38
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/2

0/
20

13
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
0.

50
0

99
6,

17
0.

00
0.

50
0

12
/2

0/
20

14
6/

20
/2

01
6

2.
88

FN
M

A
 0

.5
 3

/3
0/

20
16

31
35

G
O

V
A
8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

00
0,

75
0.

00
0.

50
0

1,
00

0,
76

0.
00

0.
46

5
3/

30
/2

01
6

2.
89

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
2

,0
0

0
,7

5
0

.0
0

0
.5

0
0

1
,9

9
6

,9
3

0
.0

0
0

.4
8

2
5

.7
7

C
A

M
P

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
N

on
e

5/
31

/2
01

1
9,

79
0.

10
9,

79
0.

10
0.

05
0

9,
79

0.
10

0.
05

0
N

/A
N

/A
0.

03

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

9
,7

9
0

.1
0

9
,7

9
0

.1
0

0
.0

5
0

9
,7

9
0

.1
0

0
.0

5
0

0
.0

3

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
D

ep
o

si
t

B
an

k 
of

 B
ar

od
a 

N
Y 

U
S
 

0.
4 

1/
22

/2
01

5
06

06
2A

FE
4

N
on

e
1/

22
/2

01
4

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
40

0
24

0,
15

1.
49

0.
40

0
1/

22
/2

01
5

0.
69

B
M

W
 B

an
k 

N
or

th
 

A
m

er
ic

a 
0.

5 
3/

14
/2

01
6

05
56

8P
6V

4
N

on
e

3/
31

/2
01

4
24

0,
00

0.
00

23
9,

76
0.

00
0.

50
0

23
9,

60
2.

22
0.

55
2

3/
14

/2
01

6
0.

69

D
is

co
ve

r 
B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

11
/2

01
5

25
46

71
D

72
N

on
e

12
/2

4/
20

13
24

0,
00

0.
00

23
9,

91
8.

40
0.

50
0

24
0,

32
0.

95
0.

52
3

6/
11

/2
01

5
0.

69

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l B

an
k 

0.
4 

10
/1

7/
20

14
36

16
3C

FX
3

N
on

e
10

/1
8/

20
13

24
5,

00
0.

00
24

5,
00

0.
00

0.
40

0
24

5,
02

4.
21

0.
40

0
10

/1
7/

20
14

0.
71

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l R

et
ai

l B
an

k 
0.

95
 3

/1
6/

20
15

36
15

7P
A
U

3
N

on
e

1/
2/

20
13

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
95

0
24

0,
78

9.
48

0.
95

0
3/

16
/2

01
5

0.
69

G
ol

dm
an

 S
ac

hs
 B

an
k 

0.
75

 1
1/

14
/2

01
4

38
14

3A
U

78
N

on
e

11
/3

0/
20

12
24

0,
00

0.
00

24
0,

00
0.

00
0.

75
0

24
0,

17
0.

81
0.

75
0

11
/1

4/
20

14
0.

69

M
er

ri
ck

 B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

30
/2

01
5

59
12

Y5
Y9

N
on

e
12

/3
0/

20
13

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
50

0
24

0,
29

0.
78

0.
50

0
6/

30
/2

01
5

0.
69

S
al

lie
 M

ae
 B

an
k 

0.
75

 
11

/1
4/

20
14

79
54

50
Q

K
4

N
on

e
11

/3
0/

20
12

24
0,

00
0.

00
24

0,
00

0.
00

0.
75

0
24

0,
17

0.
81

0.
75

0
11

/1
4/

20
14

0.
69

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

1
,9

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,9
2

4
,6

7
8

.4
0

0
.5

9
3

1
,9

2
6

,5
2

0
.7

5
0

.6
0

3
5

.5
5

C
or

p
or

at
e 

Is
su

es

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
1.

62
5 

7/
2/

20
15

36
96

2G
5Z

3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

3/
31

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

01
4,

53
0.

00
1.

62
5

1,
00

9,
51

0.
00

0.
46

0
7/

2/
20

15
2.

93
P

ag
e 

18
 o

f 1
53



D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
C

U
S

IP
/

Ti
ck

er
C

re
d

it
 

R
at

in
g

 1
S

et
tl

em
en

t 
D

at
e

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

C
os

t 
V

al
u

e
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
M

ar
ke

t 
V

al
u

e
Y

TM
 @

 
C

os
t

N
ex

t 
C

al
l 

D
at

e
M

at
u

ri
ty

 
D

at
e

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
2.

15
 1

/9
/2

01
5

36
96

2G
5M

2
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

8/
16

/2
01

3
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

02
1,

67
0.

00
2.

15
0

1,
00

5,
04

0.
00

0.
59

0
1/

9/
20

15
2.

95

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
2.

37
5 

6/
30

/2
01

5
36

96
2G

5F
7

M
oo

dy
s-

A
1

11
/3

0/
20

12
50

0,
00

0.
00

51
7,

74
5.

00
2.

37
5

50
8,

01
5.

00
0.

98
0

6/
30

/2
01

5
1.

49

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l 

C
or

p 
4.

87
5 

3/
4/

20
15

36
96

2G
P6

5
M

oo
dy

s-
A
1

9/
18

/2
01

3
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
1,

05
9,

83
0.

00
4.

87
5

1,
01

9,
61

0.
00

0.
75

0
3/

4/
20

15
3.

06

In
te

rn
al

tio
na

l B
us

in
es

s 
M

ac
hs

 0
.4

5 
5/

6/
20

16
45

92
00

H
L8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
a3

11
/2

6/
20

13
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

6,
84

0.
00

0.
45

0
99

7,
14

0.
00

0.
58

0
5/

6/
20

16
2.

88

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
C
ha

se
 4

.7
5 

3/
1/

20
15

46
62

5H
C
E8

M
oo

dy
s-

A
3

1/
2/

20
13

1,
00

0,
00

0.
00

1,
07

9,
80

0.
00

4.
75

0
1,

01
7,

98
0.

00
1.

01
2

3/
1/

20
15

3.
12

W
el

l F
ar

go
 B

an
k 

0.
75

 
7/

20
/2

01
5

94
98

5H
5F

7
M

oo
dy

s-
A
a3

3/
31

/2
01

4
56

5,
00

0.
00

56
7,

41
8.

20
0.

75
0

56
6,

77
9.

75
0.

42
0

7/
20

/2
01

5
1.

64

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

6
,0

6
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

,2
5

7
,8

3
3

.2
0

2
.5

9
6

6
,1

2
4

,0
7

4
.7

5
0

.6
8

4
1

8
.0

5

LA
IF

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
N

on
e

4/
30

/2
01

1
17

,4
35

,4
61

.9
6

17
,4

35
,4

61
.9

6
0.

26
0

17
,4

35
,4

61
.9

6
0.

26
0

N
/A

N
/A

50
.3

0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

1
7

,4
3

5
,4

6
1

.9
6

1
7

,4
3

5
,4

6
1

.9
6

0
.2

6
0

1
7

,4
3

5
,4

6
1

.9
6

0
.2

6
0

5
0

.3
0

T
re

as
u

ry

T-
B
on

d 
0.

25
 5

/1
6/

20
16

91
28

28
V
C
1

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

4,
53

0.
00

0.
25

0
99

7,
27

0.
00

0.
48

8
5/

16
/2

01
6

2.
87

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
37

5 
11

/1
5/

20
14

91
28

28
R
Q

5
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

5/
25

/2
01

2
2,

00
0,

00
0.

00
2,

00
0,

62
4.

00
0.

37
5

2,
00

0,
78

0.
00

0.
36

2
11

/1
5/

20
14

5.
77

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
37

5 
2/

15
/2

01
6

91
28

28
U

M
0

M
oo

dy
s-

A
aa

1/
24

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

9,
53

0.
00

0.
37

5
1,

00
1,

25
0.

00
0.

39
8

2/
15

/2
01

6
2.

88

T-
N

ot
e 

0.
5 

6/
15

/2
01

6
91

28
28

V
G

2
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

3/
27

/2
01

4
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
99

9,
53

0.
00

0.
50

0
1,

00
0,

93
7.

50
0.

52
1

6/
15

/2
01

6
2.

88

T-
N

ot
e 

1.
37

5 
11

/3
0/

20
15

91
28

28
PJ

3
M

oo
dy

s-
A
aa

12
/2

0/
20

13
2,

00
0,

00
0.

00
2,

04
0,

48
0.

00
1.

37
5

2,
02

7,
10

0.
00

0.
33

0
11

/3
0/

20
15

5.
89

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

7
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
7

,0
3

4
,6

9
4

.0
0

0
.6

6
5

7
,0

2
7

,3
3

7
.5

0
0

.3
9

8
2

0
.2

9

To
ta

l 
/

 A
ve

ra
g

e
3

4
,4

3
5

,2
5

2
.0

6
3

4
,6

6
3

,2
0

7
.6

6
0

.7
9

6
3

4
,5

2
0

,1
1

5
.0

6
0

.3
9

6
1

0
0

P
ag

e 
19

 o
f 1

53

A
ll 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ac
tio

ns
 e

xe
cu

te
d 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 r

ep
or

t 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 f
ul

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 I

nv
es

tm
en

t 
Po

lic
y.

 
Th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
ill

 m
ee

t 
its

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
si

x 
m

on
th

s.
 

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
LA

IF
, 

C
A
M

P,
 a

nd
 B

N
Y 

M
el

lo
n 

m
on

th
ly

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
oa

rd
 R

ep
or

t 
- 

A
ct

iv
it

y
P

o
rt

fo
lio

/
R

ep
o

rt
 G

ro
u

p
: 

A
ll 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
s

Fr
o

m
 9

/
1

/
2

0
1

4
 T

o
 9

/
3

0
/

2
0

1
4

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

C
U

S
IP

/
Ti

ck
er

Fa
ce

 
A

m
ou

n
t/

S
h

ar
es

P
ri

n
ci

p
al

In
te

re
st

/
D

iv
id

en
d

s
C

ou
p

on
 

R
at

e
Y

TM
 @

 
C

os
t

S
et

tl
em

en
t 

D
at

e
To

ta
l

D
EP

O
S

IT

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
0.

41
0.

41
0.

00
0.

00
0

9/
30

/2
01

4
0.

41

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

0
.4

1
0

.4
1

0
.0

0
0

.4
1

IN
TE

R
ES

T

B
M

W
 B

an
k 

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a 

0.
5 

3/
14

/2
01

6
05

56
8P

6V
4

0.
00

0.
00

60
4.

93
0.

50
0

0.
00

0
9/

14
/2

01
4

60
4.

93

C
A
M

P 
LG

IP
LG

IP
40

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

41
0.

00
0

9/
30

/2
01

4
0.

41

FN
M

A
 0

.5
 3

/3
0/

20
16

31
35

G
O

V
A
8

0.
00

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

0.
50

0
0.

00
0

9/
30

/2
01

4
2,

50
0.

00

G
E 

C
ap

ita
l R

et
ai

l B
an

k 
0.

95
 3

/1
6/

20
15

36
15

7P
A
U

3
0.

00
0.

00
1,

14
9.

37
0.

95
0

0.
00

0
9/

16
/2

01
4

1,
14

9.
37

G
en

er
al

 E
le

ct
ri
c 

C
ap

ita
l C

or
p 

4.
87

5 
3/

4/
20

15
36

96
2G

P6
5

0.
00

0.
00

24
,3

75
.0

0
4.

87
5

0.
00

0
9/

4/
20

14
24

,3
75

.0
0

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
C
ha

se
 4

.7
5 

3/
1/

20
15

46
62

5H
C
E8

0.
00

0.
00

23
,7

50
.0

0
4.

75
0

0.
00

0
9/

1/
20

14
23

,7
50

.0
0

M
er

ri
ck

 B
an

k 
0.

5 
6/

30
/2

01
5

59
12

Y5
Y9

0.
00

0.
00

10
1.

92
0.

50
0

0.
00

0
9/

30
/2

01
4

10
1.

92

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

5
2

,4
8

1
.6

3
5

2
,4

8
1

.6
3

W
IT

H
D

R
A

W

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
50

0,
00

0.
00

50
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

9/
5/

20
14

50
0,

00
0.

00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
60

0,
00

0.
00

60
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

9/
10

/2
01

4
60

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
50

0,
00

0.
00

50
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

9/
12

/2
01

4
50

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
40

0,
00

0.
00

40
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

9/
23

/2
01

4
40

0,
00

0.
00

LA
IF

 L
G

IP
LG

IP
10

02
1,

30
0,

00
0.

00
1,

30
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

9/
26

/2
01

4
1,

30
0,

00
0.

00

S
u

b
 T

ot
al

 /
 A

ve
ra

g
e

3
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
3

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
3

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 1

53



Union Sanitary District's Internal Retiree Medical Fund
Quarterly Report

For Period Ended 9/30/14

Fund Balance 6/30/14: $4,467.87

Revenues:
Annual allocation from Sewer Service Charges for ARC 543,540.00
Medicare part D subsidy payment 6,374.16

Expenses:

Net Medical Reimbursments (3,254.27)

Transfers Out:

9/12/14 CalPERS OPEB Trust Annual Required Contrib. (ARC) (135,885.00)
(payment #1 of 4)

Ending Fund Balance 9/30/14: $415,242.76

Page 21 of 153



U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

C
E

R
B

T
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

2
E

n
ti

ty
 #

:  
SK

B
7-

60
11

55
02

62
Q

u
ar

te
r 

E
n

d
ed

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

30
, 2

01
4

 Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 t
h

e 
G

ra
n

d
 T

ot
al

 i
s 

yo
u

r 
ac

tu
al

 f
u

n
d

 a
cc

ou
n

t 
ba

la
n

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

al
l 

ac
cr

u
ed

 C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on
s 

an
d

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

on
s.

 P
le

as
e 

re
vi

ew
 y

ou
r 

st
at

em
en

t 
p

ro
m

p
tl

y.
 A

ll
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 i

n
 y

ou
r 

st
at

em
en

t 
w

il
l 

be
 c

on
si

d
er

ed
 t

ru
e 

an
d

 a
cc

u
ra

te
 u

n
le

ss
 y

ou
 c

on
ta

ct
 u

s 
w

it
h

in
 3

0 
d

ay
s 

of
 r

ec
ei

p
t 

of
 t

h
is

 s
ta

te
m

en
t.

 I
f 

yo
u

 h
av

e 
qu

es
ti

on
s 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
va

li
d

it
y 

of
 t

h
is

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
, 

p
le

as
e 

co
n

ta
ct

 C
E

R
B

T
4U

@
ca

lp
er

s.
ca

.g
ov

.

 

30
6,

61
2.

40
8

30
6,

61
2.

40
8

$4
,0

57
,3

63
.0

8
$4

,0
57

,3
63

.0
8

13
.4

72
33

5
13

.4
72

33
5

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g 
U

n
it

 V
al

u
e

13
.7

93
21

3
13

.7
93

21
3

P
er

io
d

 B
eg

in
n

in
g 

U
n

it
 V

al
u

e

(5
,3

92
.4

06
)

9,
94

8.
11

7

30
2,

05
6.

69
7

(5
,3

92
.4

06
)

9,
94

8.
11

7

30
2,

05
6.

69
7

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

E
n

d
in

g 
U

n
it

s

U
n

it
 S

al
es

 f
or

 W
it

h
d

ra
w

al
s

U
n

it
 P

u
rc

h
as

es
 f

ro
m

 C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on
s

B
eg

in
n

in
g 

U
n

it
s

U
n

it
 V

al
u

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y:

M
ar

ke
t 

V
al

u
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y:

$4
,1

30
,7

85
.0

4
$4

,1
30

,7
85

.0
4

G
ra

n
d

 T
ot

al

(7
3,

42
1.

96
)

(1
,1

92
.6

9)

0.
00

(9
6,

81
7.

53
)

13
5,

88
5.

00

$4
,0

92
,9

10
.2

6

(7
3,

42
1.

96
)

(1
,1

92
.6

9)

0.
00

(9
6,

81
7.

53
)

13
5,

88
5.

00

$4
,0

92
,9

10
.2

6

Y
ea

r 
to

 D
at

e
C

u
rr

en
t 

P
er

io
d

E
n

d
in

g 
B

al
an

ce

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

on

A
d

m
in

 E
xp

en
se

O
th

er

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

E
ar

n
in

gs

C
on

tr
ib

u
ti

on

B
eg

in
n

in
g 

B
al

an
ce

Q
T

D
F

is
ca

l
Q

T
D

F
is

ca
l

Y
T

D
 A

cc
ru

al
73

,4
21

.9
6

73
,4

21
.9

6

T
ra

n
sf

er
 I

n

T
ra

n
sf

er
 O

u
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
n

it
 T

ra
n

sf
er

 I
n

U
n

it
 T

ra
n

sf
er

 O
u

t

0.
00

0

0.
00

0

0.
00

0

0.
00

0

1

P
ag

e 
22

 o
f 1

53



St
at

em
en

t 
of

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 D

et
ai

l 
fo

r 
th

e 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

E
n

d
in

g 
09

/3
0/

20
14

U
n

io
n

 S
an

it
ar

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t

E
n

ti
ty

 #
:  

SK
B

7-
60

11
55

02
62

D
at

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

m
ou

n
t

U
n

it
 V

al
u

e
U

n
it

s
N

ot
es

C
h

ec
k/

W
ir

e

07
/0

1/
20

14
Y

E
 A

cc
ru

al
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
on

 
R

ev
er

sa
l

$7
3,

42
1.

96
 

 

08
/0

5/
20

14
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
on

($
73

,4
21

.9
6)

$1
3.

61
58

07
(5

,3
92

.4
06

)
 

 

09
/1

2/
20

14
C

on
tr

ib
u

ti
on

$1
35

,8
85

.0
0

$1
3.

65
93

69
9,

94
8.

11
7

w
ir

e 
20

14
09

12
00

08
7

69
0

 

If
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

an
y 

qu
es

ti
on

s 
or

 c
om

m
en

ts
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 n
ew

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

fo
rm

at
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
C

E
R

BT
4U

@
C

al
PE

R
S.

ca
.g

ov

C
li

en
t 

C
on

ta
ct

:

C
E

R
B

T
4U

@
C

al
P

E
R

S.
ca

.g
ov

2

P
ag

e 
23

 o
f 1

53



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

September 2014 

Progress/Accomplishments     

 Completed 104,740 feet of cleaning and 58,464 feet of televising of sewer lines in September 
 Responded to 22 service request calls in September 
 Completed a total of 31 main repairs in September 
 Marked and located all sewer lines (Underground Service Alerts) 
 Provided support on the following projects: Lateral Condition Assessment, Upper Hetch Hetcy 

Trunk Line Lining, Jarvis Ave Sewer Relocation, Newark Backyard Lateral Relocation, 
Alvarado Site use Study, & Plant Shut Downs 

 Participated in and presented at a CSOTF Benchmarking meeting 
 Assisted TS Work Group in resolving the 2 Warm Springs lateral issues 
 Participated in a BACWA meeting 
 Continued training of 3 Collection System Worker I employees 
 Continued on our progress on catching up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 Participated in and  presented at a Benchmarking meeting with CASSE 
 Participated with State Committee to rewrite the SSMP Development Guide 
 Started recruitment for CSWI and CS Manager 

Training for Collections included;
SOP CS110-11 SSL Over the Tire Tracks, SOP CS110-12 SSL – Auger, SOP CS110-17 SSL – Tree 
Shear, Fall Protect – Competent Person for newest CSWI, Commercial Driving Training for newest 
CSWI, and Safety Star Points shared and discussed topics from Safety meeting. 

Future Planning 

 Continue effort of to catch up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 Train new CSW I employees 
 Continue planning for transition for new CS Work Group Manager  

Performance Measures 

Page 24 of 153



                  

Other Collection Services Status Data: 
Support Team Work Order Status: 

C/S Maintenance Status: 

Page 25 of 153



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2014
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY

Capital Improvement Program

Boyce Road Lift Station Project – Phase 2 – Contractor installed power and communication 
cables for the load bank; installed 2 motorized actuators in the wetwell; replaced gas detection 
system; completed gas detection system functional and operational testing. ANC (consultant) 
completed PLC and SCADA programming for the gas detection system. 

Cogeneration Project – Contractor began testing the new engine generator and digester gas 
conditioning systems.  PG&E completed their inspection of the new cogeneration system’s 480 
volt switchgear and approved USD to generate power and connect to the plant’s main 
switchgear.

Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement – Installation of mainline sewer and manholes is nearing 
completion.  Extension and reconnection of laterals at 5 residences to follow. 

Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project – Contractor mobilized on 9/15 and has
begun removing the joint sealant around the digester dome cover.  

Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks A and B Replacement – The Ferrous Chloride tank at Irvington 
PS was put into service on 9/4. Hypo Tank A at the Maintenance Shop Building was put into 
service on 9/11. Both tanks have been operating without issues.  Hypo Tank B remains to be 
replaced.

Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Process piping and electrical 
equipment submittals are currently under review.  Once approved, GSE Construction will 
proceed with the procurement of materials as well as the installation of underground conduits.  
Construction of new Thickener Electrical Building is expected to begin in late October.

Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – City of Fremont sewer bypassing and CIPP lining 
is complete.  Newark Pump Station sewer bypass mobilization is now underway. Willow St. in 
Newark to follow.

Customer Service
Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours:

Fremont Newark Union City Total
7 4 1 12

Communication & Graphics
Designed PowerPoint presentation for Joint ACWD/USD Boards of Directors meeting
Attended U.C. Chamber Events Saturday 9/27: E-Cycling, I Fly anniversary, Mexico 
Lindo Grand Re-opening
Emceed State of the City Luncheon as USD rep to Chamber of Commerce 9/30
Designed recruitment materials for Collections and TPO Manager positions

Page 26 of 153



Wrote and forwarded Safe Medicine Disposal text to ACWD for inclusion in their Fall 
newsletter (October-November 2014 bill insert and mailing)
Prepared USD’s crisis communication plan for Board review
Updated website – new org charts

Environmental Compliance

Pollution Prevention Program
# of Dental 
Inspections

# of School Outreach Events 
including Sewer Science

# of Plant Tours

5 0 1-Alameda County 
Fire

Misc. Pollution Prevention (Dental trainings, Plumbing Contractor training, etc.) 
Name of Event Date

Pollution Prevention Brown Bag for USD 
Staff

9/23/14

Reports (Annual Pollution Prevention, City of Fremont reports, etc.) 
Report Name Date Report Completed and 

Submitted
None

Pollution and Prevention
Inspections Illicit 

Discharge 
Complaints

Enforcement Actions

UR FOG Total Type UR FOG
92 42 134 1 Verbal Warning 3 10

Notice of Deficiency 0 0
Warning Letter 0 0
Notices of Violation 9 0
Admin Fine 5 0
Legal Action 0 0

Industrial
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted
None

Pending Permits
New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary

Preston Pipelines (Groundwater)

Page 27 of 153



Permits Issued  
Company Name Date Permit Issued

None

Industrial Closures  
Company Name Date of Closure

None

Enforcement Action
Violation IU Name & 

Nature of 
Business

City 
(F, 
N,   
UC)

Parameters 
Violated

Discharge 
concentration
(mg/L)

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated
(mg/L)

Comments

CD-14-
001

Safety-Kleen 
(Centralized 
Waste 
Treatment)

N Specific 
discharge and 
bypass

Ordinance 36 Ongoing compliance 
activities

N14-003 Global Plating F Cyanide 1,300 mg/L Federal Daily 
Maximum limit 
of 1.2 mg/L and 
Federal 
Monthly 
Average Limit 
of .65 mg/L.

Violation due to 
exceedance of 
permit limits. 
SNC status will be 
documented in 
Pretreatment Annual 
Report and in locally 
circulated 
newspaper per 40 
CFR 403.8(f)(2)(iv)

WL-14-
003

Sogo Bakery N Oil and Grease 
pH

4.6 6, 12 Increased 
interceptor cleaning 
frequency to 1 per 
month.

(1) Warning Letter (WL), Notice of Violation (NOV), Administrative Order (AO), Cease & Desist Order 
(C&D), Significant Non Compliance (SNC), (EM) Enforcement Meeting

(2) Fremont (F) Newark (N)    Union City (UC)
(3) Daily Max (DM)   Monthly Average (MA)

Other - Team training, Special Meetings, Conferences, Special Recognition, IAC (topics)

Activity Date of Event Attendees
IAC (Topic: Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Pass 
Through)

September 25 Alex Paredes, Audrey 
Villanueva, Edda Marasigan, 
Jason Yeates, Joe Mendoza, 
and five industrial user 
representatives

Page 28 of 153



Engineering/Construction
Construction Projects Capital

($1000)
Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
September 2014 Activity

1. Boyce Road LS Phase 
2 – Thomas 

$330 12/14 70% 61% Contractor installed 
power & communi- 
cation cables for the 
load bank; installed 2 
motorized actuators in 
the wetwell; replaced
gas detection system, 
including testing.  
Completed PLC and 
SCADA programming 
for the gas detection 
system.

2. Cogeneration Project –
Raymond

$10,566 9/14 94% 100% Contractor began 
testing of new engine 
generator and 
digester gas 
conditioning systems.

3. Jarvis Ave. SS 
Replacement – Chris E.

$1,035 11/14 42% 52% Mainline sewer and 
manholes nearly 
complete.  5 laterals 
to follow.

4. Sodium Hypochlorite 
Tanks A and B 
Replacement – 
Rollie/Derek

$220 10/14 80% 100% Ferrous Chloride and 
Hypo Tank A are 
replaced. The final 
tank, Hypo Tank B, 
was taken out of 
service on 9/15 for 
replacement.

5. Thickener Control 
Building Improvements 
Project – Curtis

$9,990 9/16 5% 10% Process piping and 
electrical equipment 
submittals under 
review.

6. Upper Hetch Hetchy SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E.

$3,016 2/15 61% 45% Work in city of 
Fremont is complete.  
Newark PS Site 
underway. Willow 
St., Newark Site to 
follow.

7. Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project - 
Chris P.

$779 12/14 11% 28% Mobilized on 9/15. 
Temporarily removed 
walkways and 
handrail. Begun 
removing the joint 
sealant around the 
digester dome cover.

Page 29 of 153



Design/Study
Design/Study Projects Capital

($1000)
Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
September 2014 Activity

1. Irvington Basin Master 
Plan Update – Capacity 
Assessment - Rollie

$231 6/15 0% 0% Kick-off Mtg held. 
Data being gathered.

2. Local Limits and 
Wastewater Treatability 
Study – Michael D.

$107 12/14 98% 100% No comments were 
received from the 
Water Board. 

3. Seismic Study -
Raymond

$148 9/14 98% 100% Staff requested the 
consultant to prepare 
an estimate for 
conducting a more 
detailed structural 
analysis of four 
buildings.

4. Cast Iron Lining Phase 
VI – Andrew

In-
House

11/14 95% 80% Sent 75% Design 
Submittal for 
Management and 
City/Agency Review; 
waiting for comments

5. Miscellaneous Spot 
Repairs Phase VI – 
Andrew

In-
House

12/14 50% TBD Reviewing add’l sites.

6. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E.

$248 4/15 15% 15% 50% design by West 
Yost underway.

7. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E.

TBD TBD 0% 0% Agreement & TO#1 
for design by West 
Yost in progress.

8. Plant Site Use Study –
Curtis

$200 6/15 10% 16% Kickoff meeting took 
place on September 
2nd. Workshop No. 1 
to take place in 
November.

9. MCC and PLC 
Replacement Project, 
Phase 3 – Chris P.

$78 6/15 0% 5% Executed Contract 
Agreement, Task 
Order No. 1 and 
Issued NTP to 
Beecher Engineering

10. Generator Controls 
Upgrade Project – Chris 
P.

TBD TBD 0% 0% Completed 
negotiations of Task 
Order No. 1.  

11. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project –
Thomas

TBD TBD 0% 0% Negotiating with 
West Yost on 
Agreement & TO#1 
(predesign)

12. Plant Lighting Study –
Thomas

TBD 6/15 0% 0% Selected TRC as the 
consultant; 
Negotiating w/ TRC 
on Agreement &
TO#1.

Page 30 of 153



Design/Study Projects Capital
($1000)

Scheduled 
Completion

Completed 
Scope

Completed
Time

Comments for
September 2014 Activity

13. Administrative and Field 
Operations Buildings 
Leak Investigation –
Chris P.

$51 10/14 95% 100% J2 provided draft 
report of findings and 
estimate of probable 
costs for repair/
replacement.  

14. Pump Station Master 
Plan – Raymond

TBD TBD TBD TBD Waiting for Carollo to 
submit a draft task 
order of services and 
fee.

15. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation – Phase 2 - 
Rollie

$200 3/15 25% 25% All resident 
investigations 
completed.  

16. Aeration Blower Project 
– Chris P.

TBD TBD TBD TBD Conducted project 
scoping meeting with 
TPO and FMC.  

Page 31 of 153



Future Planning

Prepared and delivered the Union City Annual Report.
Provided an update on the Hayward Marsh Rehabilitaiton Options Study and 
met with the Regional Water Board on September 25, 2014.

Provide a tour of the Hayward Marsh to the Regional Water Board Staff.

Provided initial operating recommendations for the new cogeneration system 
startup.

Provided orientation training for Senior Process Engineer, Connie Li.

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report
September 2014

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 99% preventive maintenance activities for the month of September.
Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

The Anitmox pilot study work was completed on site. 

Prepare for the ELAP recertification of the treatment plant laboratory.

Attend the Regional Monitoring Program annual meeting.

Other

Cogen system produced 15.9% of power consumed for the month of 
September.

Attend the BACWA Nurtient Symposium II.

Conducted facility tour for Chabot College engineering students.

Page 32 of 153



Performance Measurements

0

300

600

900

1200

1500

1800

2100

2400

2700

3000

kw
h/

M
G

Plant kwh per Million Gallons

kwh/MG Purchased kwh/MG Generated Target

0

250

500

750

1000

1250

1500

1750
TPO PM WO's Completed vs Pending

Completed Pending

5000
10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000

Co-gen Energy Value

Page 33 of 153



Parameter

SS 30 mg/l
BOD 25 mg/l
F. Coliform 500, 5-Day Log Mean

1100, 90th Percentile

Copper 78 g/l
Nickel 79 g/l
Mercury 0.066 g/l
Cyanide < 3.0 42 g/l

Operational/NPDES Performance

21 - 48

0.01070
3.7
3.0

5
11 - 24

15

Monthly Average NPDES Permit Limits

20

22

24

26

28

30

m
g/

d

Flow

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14

Results

EFF. SS CBOD SS Limit CBOD Limit

Page 34 of 153



Repair Secondary Clarifier #6
Refurbish Digester #5
Installed new dissolved oxygen analyzers.
Installed new level sensors on MSB hypo tanks

NFPA 70E Training
Cathodic Protection Tester Training and Certification

Performance Measurements

Future Planning

Overhaul #1 Centrifuge
Newark Pump Station Bypass Preparation

Other

Covered Storage Retrofit Lighting Project

Painter Hiring Interviews
Forklift Training

Completed 96% preventive maintenance activities for the month of September.
Completed 86 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of September.
Replaced #1 TPS feed valve
New Co-Generation Project Commissioning
Replaced mechanical seal on Sludge Pump #6

                FMC 
                 Activities Report
              September 2014

Progress/Accomplishments

0

5

10

15

20

Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Priority A Repairs Required 

Total Target

Page 35 of 153



0

25

50

75

100

125

150

N
o.

  o
f  

W
O

s 
Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month 

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

Page 36 of 153



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: October 20, 2014 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services  
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 – Meeting of October 27, 2014 
Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Change Order No. 3 
with GSE Construction Company for the Thickener Control 
Building Improvements Project

Recommendation

Authorizing the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 3 to the construction 
contract with GSE Construction Company, Inc. (“GSE”) for the credit amount of 
$139,292 for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project (“Project”).

Background

On May 27, 2014, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to GSE in 
the amount of $9,990,050. The Project’s scope includes the construction of a new 
Thickener Control structure with built-in utility trenches, three new progressing cavity 
sludge pumps, two grinder pumps, two flow meters, and numerous isolation valves
along with associated piping and fittings. The Project was designed by Carollo 
Engineers, and The Covello Group is providing construction management services. The 
790-day project is scheduled to be complete on September 10, 2016.

The District obtained financial assistance through the State Revolving Fund program 
administered by the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”).  The approved 
budget for this financial assistance is $12,200,000.

American Iron and Steel (“AIS”) Requirements 

Staff advertised the Project for bids on January 15, 2014.  On January 28th, the State 
Water Resources Control Board informed staff that there were new AIS requirements 

Page 37 of 153



Agenda Item No. 8
Meeting of October 27, 2014 
Page 2 

which were mandatory for all Clean Water State Revolving Fund Projects. The
executed finance agreement for this project, including the new AIS requirements, was 
received on January 30, 2014.

Per the direction of the SWRCB, staff issued addenda during the bid period which 
modified the Bid Documents to both add and clarify the new AIS Requirements.  The 
requirements prohibited the use of Project Funds to purchase “iron and steel products” 
produced outside of the United States.  The term "iron and steel products" included 
products such as lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other 
municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, 
structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials. The 
requirements did not include mechanical or electrical equipment.

Staff received and opened bids on April 22, 2014. On April 25th, the SWRCB notified
staff by email that the Project may qualify for a waiver of the AIS Requirements based 
on the original advertisement date of January 15th.   

Cost Savings for Changing Valves from Domestic to Non-Domestic

The Project includes the installation of 121 plug valves and 9 check valves ranging from 
1-1/2 to 18 inches in size.  In August 2014, GSE’s project manager asked staff if USD 
would consider waiving the AIS requirements for the Project check and plug valves as 
this would improve procurement time and reduce the cost of materials. In anticipation of 
the AIS requirements being waived by the SWRCB, staff issued a Request for 
Quotation to GSE on August 28, 2014 to determine what the cost savings would be.  
Staff discovered that there were significant potential cost savings (approximately 25%) 
for purchasing non-domestic valves versus domestic valves conforming to the AIS 
requirements.  

On September 4, 2014, the SWRCB provided staff with an executed Amendment No. 1, 
which amended the finance agreement for the Project to waive the AIS Requirements.
It was learned that the Project falls under the National Bid Waiver, as the Project was 
advertised for bid prior to April 15, 2014.

After some coordination and research from GSE, staff received a cost breakdown 
identifying that there were $154,769 in cost savings in purchasing non-domestic check 
and plug valves for the Project. GSE indicated that the cost savings should be split 
equally with the District, as with a cost-reduction incentive.  However, this proposal does 
not meet all the requirements of a cost-reduction incentive, as specified in the Project 
documents. During a meeting on October 1st, staff negotiated with GSE a 90:10 cost 
savings split, in the District’s favor.  The basis of the 10 percent cost sharing was to 
compensate GSE for identifying these potential savings, their time spent investigating 
and computing valve pricing, and to encourage them to look for additional potential
savings associated with the waiving of the AIS Requirements.

Page 38 of 153



Agenda Item No. 8
Meeting of October 27, 2014 
Page 3 

Change Order No. 3 will comprise of crediting the District’s 90 percent of the total cost 
savings of $154,769.  Therefore, the total credit to the District is $139,292.

In addition to the substantial cost savings, waiving the AIS requirements for the 
Project’s check and plug valves will reduce valve procurement times. The estimated 
procurement time for domestic valves is 14 to 16 weeks; while the estimated 
procurement time for non-domestic valves is only 4 to 6 weeks.  

The non-domestic valves would be essentially the same valves (same manufacturer, 
model and type) as the domestically manufactured valves.  The only difference would 
be that not all of the iron or steel materials used in the manufacturing process were
made or formed in the United States.  In fact, most if not all of the existing check and 
plug valves at USD’s facilities were manufactured without conforming to the AIS 
Requirements.  

Project Change Order Summary

Two change orders have been executed to date, as follows:

1. Contract Change Order No. 1 is in the amount of $0 and is for updating the 
federal Davis Bacon and Related Act wage determination schedule, and

2. Contract Change Order No. 2 is in the amount of $4,421 and is for the replacing 
of the originally submitted APCO 4-inch Air Release Valve with the Vent-O-Mat 
4-inch Air Release Valve.  The Vent-O-Mat is typically sole-sourced by USD; 
however, the type of valve was not specified by the Design Engineer in the 
Contract Documents.

Change Order No. 3 will reduce the change order rate to -1.35% of the original contract 
amount. 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order 
No. 3 to the construction contract with GSE Construction Company, Inc. for the credit 
amount of $139,292 for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project.  
Additionally, staff recommends issuing a Request for Quotation to GSE for identifying 
any additional cost savings associated with the SWRCB waiving the AIS Requirements.

PRE/SG/RC/CB;ks 

Attachment: Contract Change Order No. 3

Page 39 of 153



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER No. 003
Union Sanitary District 

Thickener Control Building Improvements Project 
Project No. 800-394

2013.035.57.003      
2013.035.56.007 Page 1 of 2

Item: Deletion of American Iron and Steel Requirements for Valves
Contractor is hereby directed to make the herein described changes from the plans and specifications or do the 
following work not included in the plans and specifications of this contract.  All new work herein described shall be 
done in accordance with the applicable provisions of the plans and specifications, except as specifically modified by 
this Contract Change Order.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:   

The District agrees to waive the American Iron and Steel (AIS) Requirements for all Eccentric 
Plug Valves and Swing Check Valves as required by Specification Section 00820-4.0.  The 
Contractor and Owner have agreed to a 90:10 cost savings split, with 90 percent of the total 
savings being credited back to the District. Refer to the attached breakdown included in
Potential Change Order (PCO) No. 1.    

Domestic Valve Bid Amount   -$618,621.00

Non-Domestic Valve Quoted Amount $463,852.00  

Total Amount     (-154,769.00) 

REFERENCES: Potential Change Order (PCO) No. 1 
    Request for Quote (RFQ) No. 1 
             
COST OF CHANGE: ($139,292.00) Deduct

CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT: none  
    

We, the undersigned Contractor, have given careful consideration to all aspects of the change proposed and hereby 
agree.  This Contract Change Order constitutes full and complete compensation for all labor, equipment, materials, 
overhead, profit, any and all indirect costs and time adjustment, including any delay and rescheduling, required to 
perform the above described change and will accept this Contract Change Order as full and final payment.

This document supplements the Contract Documents and all provisions of the Contract Documents will apply 
thereto.  It is understood that the Contract Change Order shall be effective when fully executed by the District.
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
ACCEPTED:      RECOMMENDED FOR ACCEPTANCE:
  
GSE Construction Co., Inc.    The COVELLO GROUP, Inc.
Project Manager:     Construction Manager:

By:          By:         
Mario Lozano       Mike Redig, P.E.

Date:          Date:       

Page 40 of 153



2013.035.57.003      
2013.035.56.007 Page 2 of 2

AUTHORIZED STAFF APPROVAL:

The Contractor shall not commence with the above-described work of this change order prior to 
the approval by the District's Authorized Staff.

Union Sanitary District
General Manager/District Engineer: 

By:          
Paul Eldredge

Date: ___________________

Page 41 of 153



P
ag

e 
42

 o
f 1

53



Sy
st

em
Dr

aw
in

g
Ar

ea
Si

ze
De

sc
rip

tio
n

Co
nn

ec
tio

n
Ac

tu
at

or
Ta

g 
#

Lo
ca

tio
n

Ce
nt

er
 

Li
ne

 
El

ev
at

io
n

Q
TY

U
ni

t P
ric

e
To

ta
l

U
ni

t P
ric

e
To

ta
l

DP
S

M
08

So
lid

s
10

"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

1
$3

,9
72

.0
0

$3
,9

72
.0

0
$5

,2
95

.0
0

$5
,2

95
.0

0
DP

S
M

08
So

lid
s

8"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

2
$2

,7
33

.0
0

$5
,4

66
.0

0
$3

,6
43

.0
0

$7
,2

86
.0

0
TP

S/
PW

AS
G

09
Ya

rd
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
4

$2
,4

06
.0

0
$9

,6
24

.0
0

$3
,2

07
.0

0
$1

2,
82

8.
00

TI
G

06
Ya

rd
1-

1/
2"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
4

$2
11

.0
0

$8
44

.0
0

$2
81

.0
0

$1
,1

24
.0

0
TP

S/
PW

AS
G

09
Ya

rd
1-

1/
2"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
4

$2
11

.0
0

$8
44

.0
0

$2
81

.0
0

$1
,1

24
.0

0
TP

S
M

10
Di

ge
st

er
 4

1-
1/

2"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

1
$2

11
.0

0
$2

11
.0

0
$2

81
.0

0
$2

81
.0

0
TP

S/
PS

C/
DS

N
C0

1
Ya

rd
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Sq

ua
re

 N
ut

Bu
rie

d
U

nk
no

w
n

3
$2

,2
71

.0
0

$6
,8

13
.0

0
$3

,0
28

.0
0

$9
,0

84
.0

0
TP

S/
PS

C/
DS

N
C0

1
Ya

rd
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Sq

ua
re

 N
ut

Bu
rie

d
U

nk
no

w
n

1
$2

,2
71

.0
0

$2
,2

71
.0

0
$3

,0
28

.0
0

$3
,0

28
.0

0
DS

N
C0

1
Ya

rd
4"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Sq

ua
re

 N
ut

Bu
rie

d
U

nk
no

w
n

1
$2

,3
39

.0
0

$2
,3

39
.0

0
$3

,1
19

.0
0

$3
,1

19
.0

0
TP

S
C0

3
Ya

rd
8"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
1

$2
,7

33
.0

0
$2

,7
33

.0
0

$3
,6

43
.0

0
$3

,6
43

.0
0

TP
S/

PW
AS

/P
SC

M
01

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

G
ro

ov
ed

 E
nd

s
Sq

ua
re

 N
ut

Pi
pe

 T
re

nc
h

-2
.9

2
7

$3
,3

52
.0

0
$2

3,
46

4.
00

$4
,4

69
.0

0
$3

1,
28

3.
00

TP
S/

PW
AS

/P
SC

M
01

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

G
ro

ov
ed

 E
nd

s
Sq

ua
re

 N
ut

Pi
pe

 T
re

nc
h

-1
.5

10
$3

,3
52

.0
0

$3
3,

52
0.

00
$4

,4
69

.0
0

$4
4,

69
0.

00
PS

C
M

01
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

6"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
G

ro
ov

ed
 E

nd
s

Sq
ua

re
 N

ut
Pi

pe
 T

re
nc

h
??

?
1

$3
,3

52
.0

0
$3

,3
52

.0
0

$4
,4

69
.0

0
$4

,4
69

.0
0

PW
AS

M
01

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
8"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

G
ro

ov
ed

 E
nd

s
Sq

ua
re

 N
ut

Pi
pe

 T
re

nc
h

-1
.5

1
$3

,6
98

.0
0

$3
,6

98
.0

0
$4

,9
30

.0
0

$4
,9

30
.0

0
TP

S/
PW

AS
/P

SC
M

02
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

6"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
G

ro
ov

ed
 E

nd
s

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

12
$3

,3
52

.0
0

$4
0,

22
4.

00
$4

,4
69

.0
0

$5
3,

62
8.

00
TP

S/
PW

AS
/P

SC
M

02
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

6"
Ch

ec
k 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

N
A

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

6
$4

,4
37

.0
0

$2
6,

62
2.

00
$5

,9
16

.0
0

$3
5,

49
6.

00
TI

/W
AS

M
03

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
12

"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ch
ai

nw
he

el
Ex

po
se

d
11

.8
3

8
$4

,9
37

.0
0

$3
9,

49
6.

00
$6

,5
82

.0
0

$5
2,

65
6.

00
TI

M
03

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
18

"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ch
ai

nw
he

el
Ex

po
se

d
8.

08
1

$9
,9

22
.0

0
$9

,9
22

.0
0

$1
3,

22
9.

00
$1

3,
22

9.
00

TP
S/

PW
AS

/P
SC

M
05

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

G
ro

ov
ed

 E
nd

s
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
10

$3
,3

52
.0

0
$3

3,
52

0.
00

$4
,4

69
.0

0
$4

4,
69

0.
00

TP
S/

PW
AS

/P
SC

M
05

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
6

$2
,4

06
.0

0
$1

4,
43

6.
00

$3
,2

07
.0

0
$1

9,
24

2.
00

TP
S/

PW
AS

/P
SC

M
06

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

G
ro

ov
ed

 E
nd

s
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
18

$3
,3

52
.0

0
$6

0,
33

6.
00

$4
,4

69
.0

0
$8

0,
44

2.
00

TP
S/

PW
AS

/P
SC

M
06

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
1-

1/
2"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
4

$2
11

.0
0

$8
44

.0
0

$2
81

.0
0

$1
,1

24
.0

0
TP

S/
PW

AS
/P

SC
M

06
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

4"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

2
$1

,1
02

.0
0

$2
,2

04
.0

0
$1

,5
69

.0
0

$3
,1

38
.0

0
TP

S/
PW

AS
/P

SC
M

06
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

2"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

2
$2

31
.0

0
$4

62
.0

0
$3

07
.0

0
$6

14
.0

0
TP

S/
PW

AS
/P

SC
M

06
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

4"
Ch

ec
k 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

N
A

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

2
$4

,1
87

.0
0

$8
,3

74
.0

0
$5

,5
82

.0
0

$1
1,

16
4.

00
DP

S
M

07
Th

ic
ke

ne
r B

ld
g

10
"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
1

$3
,9

72
.0

0
$3

,9
72

.0
0

$5
,2

95
.0

0
$5

,2
95

.0
0

SS
C/

PS
C

M
07

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
2

$2
,4

06
.0

0
$4

,8
12

.0
0

$3
,2

07
.0

0
$6

,4
14

.0
0

DP
S/

SS
C/

PS
C

M
07

Th
ic

ke
ne

r B
ld

g
1-

1/
2"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
3

$2
11

.0
0

$6
33

.0
0

$2
81

.0
0

$8
43

.0
0

TP
S

M
09

HM
B 

1
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
M

ot
or

ize
d

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

2
$1

0,
02

2.
00

$2
0,

04
4.

00
$1

3,
36

2.
00

$2
6,

72
4.

00
TP

S
M

10
Di

ge
st

er
 4

 &
 5

6"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

M
ot

or
ize

d
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
2

$1
0,

92
2.

00
$2

1,
84

4.
00

$1
4,

56
2.

00
$2

9,
12

4.
00

TP
S

M
10

Di
ge

st
er

 4
 &

 5
1-

1/
2"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
1

$2
11

.0
0

$2
11

.0
0

$2
81

.0
0

$2
81

.0
0

TP
S

M
11

Di
ge

st
er

 4
 &

 5
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
1

$2
,4

06
.0

0
$2

,4
06

.0
0

$3
,2

07
.0

0
$3

,2
07

.0
0

TP
S

M
11

Di
ge

st
er

 4
 &

 5
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
Ha

nd
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
1

$2
,4

06
.0

0
$2

,4
06

.0
0

$3
,2

07
.0

0
$3

,2
07

.0
0

PS
C

M
12

Sl
ud

ge
 P

um
p 

Ro
om

 1
6"

Ec
ce

nt
ric

 P
lu

g 
Va

lv
e

Fl
an

ge
M

ot
or

ize
d

VL
V-

PS
C1

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

1
$8

,6
72

.0
0

$8
,6

72
.0

0
$1

1,
56

2.
00

$1
1,

56
2.

00
PS

C
M

13
Sl

ud
ge

 P
um

p 
Ro

om
 2

&
3

12
"

Sw
in

g 
Ch

ec
k 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

N
A

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

1
$9

,5
34

.0
0

$9
,5

34
.0

0
$1

2,
71

1.
00

$1
2,

71
1.

00
PS

C
M

13
Sl

ud
ge

 P
um

p 
Ro

om
 2

&
3

6"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

Ha
nd

Ex
po

se
d

N
A

2
$2

,4
06

.0
0

$4
,8

12
.0

0
$3

,2
07

.0
0

$6
,4

14
.0

0
PS

C
M

13
Sl

ud
ge

 P
um

p 
Ro

om
 2

&
3

6"
Ec

ce
nt

ric
 P

lu
g 

Va
lv

e
Fl

an
ge

M
ot

or
ize

d
VL

V-
PS

C2
Ex

po
se

d
N

A
1

$8
,6

72
.0

0
$8

,6
72

.0
0

$1
1,

56
2.

00
$1

1,
56

2.
00

N
on

-D
om

es
tic

$4
23

,6
09

.0
0

Do
m

es
tic

 (B
id

)
$5

64
,9

51
.0

0

N
on

-D
om

es
tic

Do
m

es
tic

 (B
id

)

P
ag

e 
43

 o
f 1

53



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager 
District Engineer 

David M. O'Hara 
Attorney

5072 Benson Road Union City, CA  94587-2508 
P. O. Box 5050 Union City, CA  94587-8550 

(510) 477-7500     FAX (510) 477-7501 
www.unionsanitary.com 

DATE: October 20, 2013 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
 Rich Cortes, Business Services Work Group Manager 
 Richard Scobee, GIS/Database Administrator

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of October 27, 2014 
APPROVE GIS JPA FY15 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

Recommendation

Approve a net $7,400 reduction of the FY15 GIS JPA budget including an $8,400 increase for 
the purchase of Building Outline data from Pictometry and a deferral of $16,000 to FY16 and 
FY17 for a 3-year Aerial Photo Subscription agreement with Alameda County ($8,000 each year 
from FY15 to FY17). 

Background 

The current GIS JPA FY15 budget includes $24,000 to purchase new Aerial Photos from 
Alameda County. However Alameda County entered into a 3-year subscription agreement with 
Pictometry for new Aerial photos and the Pictometry Online (POL) service which provides the 
Pictometry imagery software system as an Internet web browser application. Through the 
Southern Alameda County GIS Authority (SACGISA), USD will purchase the 3-year subscription 
service from Alameda Country. USD will also be provided a copy of the new Aerial Photos to 
use in-house. The cost to USD will be $8,000 per year for FY15 to FY17. 

SACGISA also intends to contract Pictometry to digitize Building Outlines from the new Aerial 
Photos. The one-time cost to USD will be no more than $8,400. 

Staff recommends the Board approve a net $7,400 reduction of the FY15 GIS JPA budget 
including an $8,400 increase for the purchase of Building Outline data from Pictometry and a 
deferral of $16,000 to FY16 and FY17 for a 3-year Aerial Photo Subscription agreement with 
Alameda County ($8,000 each year from FY15 to FY17). 

PRE/RC/RS

Page 44 of 153



 
 

 

 Directors
Manny Fernandez 

 Tom Handley 
 Pat Kite 
 Anjali Lathi 
 Jennifer Toy 
  
 Officers 
 Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager
 District Engineer
 
 David M. O'Hara 
 Attorney 

  

DATE:  October 16, 2014 
 
MEMO TO:  Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager 
   Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 
   Debi Kull, Sr. Accountant 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 10 – Meeting of October 27, 2014 

Accepting Financial Statements – Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 

Background 
 
The District engages an independent accounting firm to audit the financial statements 
and records for each fiscal year.  Attached for your review is their audit report on the 
District’s comparative financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
and the Single Audit report covering State Revolving Fund proceeds (Federal portion) 
for Cedar Blvd and Substation 1.  
 
 
Operating Revenues:
 
FY ‘14 operating revenues increased by 6.9% to $46,509,437. 
    

Fiscal Year 2014  $46,509,437 
Fiscal Year 2013  $43,503,113 
Fiscal Year 2012  $41,657,935 

    
    

Page 45 of 153



5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA  94587 

(510) 477-7500     Fax: (510) 477-7501 

Operating Expenses:
 
FY ‘14 operating expenses, before depreciation, decreased by 3.6% to $32,914,966. 
 
   Fiscal Year 2014  $32,914,966 

Fiscal Year 2013  $34,154,742 
   Fiscal Year 2012  $29,919,729 
          
    
Net Position:
 
FY ‘14 Net Position decreased by .35% to $349,745,533. 
 
   Fiscal Year 2014  $349,745,533 

Fiscal Year 2013  $350,983,722 
Fiscal Year 2012  $353,867,248 

Fund Balances: 
 
The total ending fund balances for capacity, renewal and replacement, and other 
restricted and unrestricted purposes decreased from $51.6 million in FY’13 to $45.7 
million in FY’14.  
 
 
Audit Comments: 
 
There were no audit comments for FY14. 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
 

Page 46 of 153



UNION
SANITARY DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND

ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

WITH

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Page 47 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

JUNE 30, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT…………………………………………………………….. 1

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ……………………………………………… 3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013………………………………………………………………………. 9

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013………………………………………………… 10

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013…………………………………………………. 11

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS…………………………………………………………… 12

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION…………………………………………………. 33

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedules of Components of Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013…………………………………………………. 35

Schedules of Operating Expenses before Depreciation
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013………………………………………………..... 37

Schedules of Insurance Coverage
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014………….…………………………………………….…... 38

Page 48 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

3

This section of the District’s annual financial report presents an analysis of the District’s financial performance
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This information is presented in conjunction with the audited
financial statements, which follow this section.

The District, which was established in 1918 and subsequently reorganized in 1923, is empowered to own and
operate wastewater facilities and the Board of Directors may prescribe, revise and collect fees or charges for
services and facilities of the District in connection with its wastewater system.

FINANCIAL HIGH LIGHTS

The District’s total ending net position decreased by $1.2 million as a result of this year's operations. At
June 30, 2014 net position totaled $349.7 million. That is, the District’s total assets exceeded liabilities
by $349.7 million.

During the year, the District had expenses, including depreciation of $17.2 million, which exceeded
sewer service charges, contributed capital, interest, and other operating revenues resulting in a reduction
in net position of $1.2 million. This compares to last year when expenses exceeded revenues by $2.9
million.

Long-term liabilities increased by $454,000 during the current fiscal year due to the addition of State
Revolving Fund loan proceeds (debt).

The District placed $35.7 million in assets into service compared to $10 million last year.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The District-wide financial statements include the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These provide
information about the activities of the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District's
property, debt obligations and other financial matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a
manner similar to the financial reports of a business enterprise.
The notes to the financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for full disclosure.

Statement of Net Position – Includes all District assets and liabilities and provides information about
the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and obligations to creditors (liabilities). It
also provides the basis for computing rate of return; evaluating the capital structure of the District; and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – All of the current year revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This
statement measures the success of District operations over the past year and can be used to determine
whether the District has successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges,
profitability, and credit worthiness.

Page 49 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

4

Statement of Cash Flows – The primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about
District cash receipts, cash disbursements and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investments,
and capital and non-capital financing activities. It illustrates the source of revenue, purposes for which it
was used, and change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Reporting the District as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's activities.

Net position of the District's business-type activities decreased from $350.9 million to $349.7 million.
Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without
constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - were $32.8 million at
June 30, 2014. The decrease in total net position was the result of a decrease in current and other assets of $5.3
million, mainly investments, an increase in capital assets of $3.7 million, due to increased completed construction
projects placed into service and depreciation, a decrease in current liabilities of approximately $0.9 million, and
an increase in long term liabilities of $454,000.

Table 1 – Condensed Statement of Net Position

Dollar Percent
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change Change

2014 2013 2012 FY14 to FY13 FY14 to FY13

Current and other assets 57,495,214$ 62,855,452$ 63,661,824$ (5,360,238)$ -8.5%
Capital assets 338,757,641 335,041,723 336,569,446 3,715,918 1.1%

Total assets 396,252,855 397,897,175 400,231,270 (1,644,320) -0.4%

Current liabilities 9,146,967 10,007,413 10,034,883 (860,446) -8.6%
Long-term liabilities 37,360,355 36,906,040 36,329,139 454,315 1.2%

Total liabilities 46,507,322 46,913,453 46,364,022 (406,131) -0.9%

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 299,269,526 294,393,392 296,939,157 4,876,134 1.7%
Restricted 17,622,778 20,297,820 19,346,378 (2,675,042) -13.2%
Unrestricted 32,853,229 36,292,510 37,581,713 (3,439,281) -9.5%

Total net position 349,745,533$ 350,983,722$ 353,867,248$ (1,238,189)$ -0.4%

In the prior year, FY 2013, net position decreased from $353.9 million to $350.9 million, due mainly to a
decrease in current and other assets of $806,000, mainly cash, a decrease in capital assets of $1.5 million, due to
increased construction in progress and depreciation, a decrease in current liabilities of approximately $27,000,
and an increase in long term liabilities of $577,000.

Page 50 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

5

Table 2 – Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Dollar Percent
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Change Change

2014 2013 2012 FY14 to FY13 FY14 to FY13
Operating Revenues:

Sewer service charges (SSC) 45,139,420$ 42,339,311$ 40,630,578$ 2,800,109$ 6.6%
Other revenues 1,370,017 1,163,802 1,027,357 206,215 17.7%

Total operating revenues 46,509,437 43,503,113 41,657,935 3,006,324 6.9%

Operating Expenses:
Depreciation 17,219,109 16,776,307 16,790,277 442,802 2.6%
Sewage treatment 15,410,521 16,088,929 14,255,266 (678,408) -4.2%
Sewage collection and engineering 10,869,755 11,954,345 9,712,645 (1,084,590) -9.1%
General and administration 6,634,688 6,111,468 5,951,818 523,220 8.6%

Total operating expenses 50,134,073 50,931,049 46,710,006 (796,976) -1.6%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Connection fees 3,489,247 3,062,836 2,848,488 426,411 13.9%
Contributed capital 712,683 4,009,985 1,538,284 (3,297,302) -82.2%
Investment income and net gains 180,041 178,690 248,337 1,351 0.8%
Loss on retirement of capital assets (796,735) (1,479,254) (127,430) 682,519 -46.1%
Interest (1,106,609) (1,138,677) (858,162) 32,068 -2.8%

Total net non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,478,627 4,633,580 3,649,517 (2,187,021) -47.2%

Change in net position before special items (1,146,009) (2,794,356) (1,402,554) 1,616,279 -57.8%
East Bay Dischargers Authority loss (92,180) (89,170) (100,827) (3,010) 3.4%

Change in Net Position (1,238,189) (2,883,526) (1,503,381) 1,645,337 -57.1%
Beginning Net Position 350,983,722 353,867,248 355,370,629 (2,883,526) -0.8%
Ending Net Position 349,745,533$ 350,983,722$ 353,867,248$ (1,238,189)$ -0.4%

The District's total operating revenues such as sewer service charges increased by $3.0 million, or 7.0 percent for
the year ended June 30, 2014. This is due mainly to a 5.7 percent increase in the sewer service charge rate, and
an increase in other fees. Contributed capital decreased by $3.3 million. The total operating expenses, including
depreciation, was 1.6 percent lower than last year. Most major cost categories increased over 2013 costs except
for non-capital project costs, repairs and maintenance, and office supplies.
In the prior year, FY 2013, total operating revenues such as sewer services charges increased by $1.8
million. This was due mainly to a 5 percent increase in the sewer service charge rate. The total operating
expenses, including depreciation, was 9 percent higher than FY 2012. Most major cost categories increased,
including non-capital project expense, insurance, office supplies, repairs and maintenance, and operating
supplies. The main increase was for non-capital project expenses of $3.8 million for Force Main Improvement
Project, Inka Demolition, Facilities Condition Assessment, among others. For more information please see
schedules of Operating Expenses before Depreciation on page 37.

Page 51 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

6

30%

22%11%

31%

2% 3% Sewage
Treatment
Collection & Eng

Gen & Admin

Depreciation

Interest

Loss on Assets

FY 2013 Expenses

The District took actions this year to compensate for increases in costs, and to avoid the loss of revenue due to
changes in the economy.

The District increased sewer service fees 5.7%.

The District increased capacity fees 10%.

Page 52 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

7

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2014, the District had approximately $339 million invested in a broad range of capital assets,
including facilities and equipment for the plant, collections, and administrative facilities. This amount represents
a net increase of $3.7 million, or 1.1 percent, compared to last year. The main reason for this is the accumulated
depreciation in FY 2014. Total assets placed into service were $37.0 million in FY 2014 vs. $10 million in FY
2013 and $3.8 in FY 2012. Additions to Construction in Progress were $19.9 million in FY 2014 vs. $13.9
million in FY 2013 and $18.6 million in FY 2012.
Additions to Construction in Progress totaled $19.9 million. Major projects included:

Table 3 – Additions to Construction in Progress
Cogeneration 10,060,704$
I-680 at Sabercat Road Sanitary Sewer Replacement 1,622,258
Headworks & Emergency Outfall Improvements 1,425,256
Lift Station #1 Improvements 1,258,729
MCC Replacement Phase 2 881,082
Boyce Road Lift Station 792,590
Thickener Control Building Interim Improvements 582,639
RAS Pump Station Improvements 504,938
Hansen 8 Upgrade 502,714
Thickener Control Building Improvements Phase 2 500,723
Cast Iron Lining Phase 2 415,040
Others 1,379,086
Total 19,925,759$

This year’s major additions (placed into service) included:

Table 4 – Total Assets Placed into Service
Primary Clarifiers 1-4 9,582,127$
Boyce Road Lift Station 8,236,316
Headworks & Emergency Outfall Improvements 3,887,951
Irvington Pump Station Solar Panels 3,144,560
I-680 at Sabercat Road Sanitary Sewer Replacement 2,334,939
Thickeners #3 & 4 Rehabilitation 1,865,693
Lift Station #1 Improvements 1,270,019
MCC Replacement Phase 2 950,824
PLC Replacement Phase 1 901,879
Thickener Control Building Interim Improvements 851,721
RAS Pump Station Improvements 675,167
Niles Sewer Construction 622,992
Cast Iron Lining Phase 4 466,034
Others 923,352

35,713,574$

More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in Note 2 to the financial statements.

Page 53 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2014

8

Debt Administration

At year-end, the District had $39.5 million in notes outstanding versus $40.6 million last year. This debt consists
of nine State Revolving Fund loans.

Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave. More detailed information about the District's
long-term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC AND OTHER FACTORS

The District's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2014 budget.
One of those factors was the economy. Increased salary and benefit costs, as well as increased CIP projects, were
taken into consideration. In addition, the Board considered increasing construction costs when reviewing the
CIP. Sewer service charge rates increased 5.7% and Capacity fee rates increased 10%. The net Operating budget
was increased 6%, using a projected staff vacancy factor of 2%.

The District's fiscal year 2014 capital budget called for expenditures of $19.4 million for I-680 at Sabercat Rd,
Newark Backyard Relocation, Cogeneration, Headworks Conveyors and Screenings, RAS Pump Stations Pumps
and Valve Replacement, and Thickener Control Building Improvements among others. The Engineering group
prioritized and rescheduled CIP projects in order to help achieve our goal of positive fund balances. The CIP
budget has increased by $3.9 million from fiscal year 2013.

The District’s fiscal year 2015 budget includes a 1.5% increase in the operating budget with a 2% staff vacancy
factor, and a capital budget which calls for expenditures of $14.9 million for Cogeneration, Newark Backyard
Relocation, Upper Hetch Hetchy, Cogeneration, Digester 5 Rehabilitation, and Thickener Control Building
Improvements projects. Sewer service charges will increase 5.7% and Capacity fee rates will increase 5%.

The District will use its revenues to finance current projects, although applications will continue to be submitted
to the State Water Resources Control Board for State Revolving Fund loans for upcoming projects.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the District at (510) 477-
7500.

Page 54 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

9

2014 2013
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash, cash equivalents 994,203$ 643,752$
Investments 44,648,195 50,804,062
Accounts receivable, net 3,260,774 2,771,607
Interest receivable 79,360 99,811
Inventory 657,399 596,396
Other 21,257 21,659

Total current assets 49,661,188 54,937,287

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets

Non depreciable capital assets:
Land and improvements 5,593,929 5,593,929
Construction in progress 16,012,340 31,800,155
Capacity permits and easements 6,217,872 6,043,632

Depreciable assets
Utility plant in service 643,759,521 609,293,880
Less: Accumulated depreciation (332,826,021) (317,689,873)

Net capital assets 338,757,641 335,041,723

Other Assets
Restricted investments 10,000 10,000
Net OPEB asset 1,443,759 1,435,718
Investment in East Bay Dischargers Authority 6,380,267 6,472,447
Total other assets 7,834,026 7,918,165

Total non-current assets 346,591,667 342,959,888

TOTAL ASSETS 396,252,855 397,897,175

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,097,356 3,738,900
Customer deposits 588,996 381,542
Accrued payroll and related expenses 861,253 671,896
Interest payable 573,706 557,503
Current portion of compensated absences 897,896 915,281
Current portion of long-term debt 2,127,760 3,742,291

Total current liabilities 9,146,967 10,007,413

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, net of current portion 37,360,355 36,906,040

Total long-term liabilities 37,360,355 36,906,040

TOTAL LIABILITIES 46,507,322 46,913,453

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 299,269,526 294,393,392
Restricted for:

Capacity purposes, expendable 14,165,399 16,093,405
SRF loan contingency reserve, non-expendable 3,457,379 4,204,415

Unrestricted 32,853,229 36,292,510

TOTAL NET POSITION 349,745,533$ 350,983,722$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 55 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

10

2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUE

Sewer service charges 45,139,420$ 42,339,311$
Other operating revenues 1,370,017 1,163,802

Total operating revenue 46,509,437 43,503,113

OPERATING EXPENSES
Sewage treatment 15,410,523 16,088,929
Sewage collection and engineering 10,869,755 11,954,345
General and administration 6,634,688 6,111,468

Total operating expenses before depreciation 32,914,966 34,154,742

DEPRECIATION 17,219,109 16,776,307
Total operating expenses 50,134,075 50,931,049

OPERATING LOSS (3,624,638) (7,427,936)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Net investment income and net realized gains and losses 180,041 178,690
Interest Expense (1,106,609) (1,138,677)
Loss on retirement of capital assets (796,735) (1,479,254)
Gain (loss) on equity investment in East Bay Dischargers Authority (92,180) (89,170)

Net non-operating revenue (expense) (1,815,483) (2,528,411)

LOSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL (5,440,121) (9,956,347)

Connection fees and other contributed capital 4,201,932 7,072,821

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,238,189) (2,883,526)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 350,983,722 353,867,248
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 349,745,533$ 350,983,722$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 56 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

11

2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 46,020,270$ 43,693,132$
Payments to suppliers & service providers (11,512,817) (14,855,529)
Payments to employees (14,647,781) (13,983,330)
Payments for benefits on behalf of employees (5,829,730) (5,692,889)
Receipts for customer deposits 450,116 385,256
Returns of customer deposits (242,662) (266,735)
Payments related to postemployment benefits (462,852) (448,284)

Cash flows provided by operating activities 13,774,544 8,831,621

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt (3,742,293) (3,306,586)
Proceeds from state revolving loan funds 2,582,077 4,324,628
Interest paid on long-term debt (1,090,406) (986,604)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (21,815,814) (14,197,107)
Connection fees and other related revenues from developers 3,489,249 3,062,836

Cash flows (used in) capital and related financing activities (20,577,187) (11,102,833)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 200,492 271,737
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 796,735 1,479,254
Purchase of investments (62,639,133) (57,498,133)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 68,795,000 57,040,000

Cash flows provided by investing activities 7,153,094 1,292,858

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 350,451 (978,354)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 643,752 1,622,106

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 994,203$ 643,752$

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 994,203$ 643,752$

Total cash and cash equivalents 994,203$ 643,752$

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Operating loss (3,624,638)$ (7,427,936)$
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to cash flows

provided by operating activities
Depreciation 17,219,109 16,776,307
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and other assets (489,167) 190,019
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 358,456 (827,495)
Decrease in inventory and other 103,330 2,205
Increase in customer deposits 207,454 118,521

Cash flows provided by operating activities 13,774,544$ 8,831,621$

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Contributions of capital assets 712,683$ 4,009,985$
Decrease in equity in East Bay Dischargers Authority 92,180 89,170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 57 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

12

NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Organization

Union Sanitary District (the “District”) operates pursuant to Division 6 of the Health and Safety Code of the State
of California (Sanitary District Act of 1923, as amended). The District, which was established in 1918 and
subsequently reorganized in 1923, is empowered to own and operate wastewater facilities, and the Board of
Directors may prescribe, revise and collect fees or charges for services and facilities of the District in connection
with its wastewater system.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by wards for four-year overlapping terms.
The election is at-large and non-partisan. The Board appoints the General Manager to manage and oversee the
day-to-day operations.

The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America as applicable to enterprise governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The GASB
establishes standards for external financial reporting for all state and local governmental entities, which require a
management and discussion and analysis section, a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net position into three
components: invested in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

The Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable, and other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The District considered all potential
component units in determining what organizations should be included in the financial statements. The District
has determined that there are no component units that meet these criteria as of, and for the year ended June 30,
2014. The District includes all funds that are controlled by, or dependent upon the Board of Directors of the
District.

In addition, the District’s share of a Joint Powers Authority (East Bay Dischargers Authority) is reflected based
upon the District’s proportionate share of its investment in the discharge facilities in the Authority (see Note 4).

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the District are presented as those of an enterprise fund under the broad category of
funds called proprietary funds, which also include internal service funds. All proprietary funds utilize the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset utilized.

Page 58 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

13

NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Enterprise funds account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities are financed
primarily by user charges, and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar
to the private sector. The acquisition and capital improvement of the physical plant facilities requires that these
goods and services be financed from existing cash resources, cash flow from operations, the issuance of debt, and
contributed capital.

The District applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for proprietary operations,
as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, except for those that conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB’s) of
the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current
year’s presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and have a maturity of three months or less when acquired, to be cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2014 and
2013, cash equivalents consist of U.S. Treasury funds in a sweep account.

Certain cash and cash equivalents have been placed into escrow according to the requirements of ongoing
construction contracts. Accordingly, such cash and cash equivalents have been classified as restricted in the
accompanying financial statements.

Investments

Investments, which consist of short-term, fixed-income securities at June 30, 2014 and 2013, are recorded at fair
value using quoted market prices. The related net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments are
recognized in the accompanying statement of revenues expenses, and changes in net position.

Certain investments have been placed into escrow according to the requirements of ongoing construction
contracts. Accordingly, such investments have been classified as restricted in the accompanying financial
statements.

Inventory

Inventory is held for consumption and is recorded at cost using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, including costs of addition to utility plant and major replacements of property, are capitalized and
stated at cost. The District’s capitalization threshold is $10,000. Such capital costs include materials, direct
labor, transportation, and such indirect costs as interest and contracted engineering. Contributed property is
recorded as fair value as of the date of donation. Repairs, maintenance, and minor replacements of property are
charges to expense.

Page 59 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

14

NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Depreciation

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all customers over the life of
those assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro rata share of
capital asset costs.

Depreciation of all capital assets in service is charged as an expense against operations each year. Accumulated
depreciation, the total amount of depreciation taken over the years, is reported on the statement of net position as
a reduction in the gross value of the capital assets.

Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated using the straight line method, dividing the cost of the asset
by its expected useful life in years. The result is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated.
It is the District’s policy to utilize the half-year convention when calculating depreciation. The District has
assigned the following useful lives to capital assets:

Useful Lives
Wastewater collection facilities 50 – 115 years
Wastewater treatment facilities 10 – 50 years
District facilities 10 – 35 years
General equipment 3 – 35 years

The aggregate provision for depreciation was 3.07 percent and 2.99 percent of average depreciable plant during
the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Compensated Absences

Vacation can be accumulated and is fairly vested. These compensated absences are recorded as an expense when
earned and are carried as a liability until taken. The liability is computed using current employee pay rates.

Net Position

Net position is measured on the full accrual basis and is the excess of all the District’s assets over all its
liabilities. Net position is classified into the following components: net investment in capital assets, restricted
and unrestricted. Restricted net position describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the
terms and conditions of agreement with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions
which the District cannot unilaterally alter. It is the District’s policy to apply restricted resources first when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.
The following categories of restricted net position are described as follows:

Net Position Restricted for Capacity Purposes – restricted for activities related to increases in the
capacity of the collection and/or treatment systems.

Net Position Restricted for Debt Purposes – the State requires a contingency reserve for State Revolving
Fund loan balances.

Page 60 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

15

NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Classification of Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues consist primarily of sewer service charges to customers, which are billed and collected on
behalf of the District by Alameda County (the County) as a separate component of semiannual property tax
billings. Property taxes are levied on March 1 and are due in equal installments on November 1 and February 1.
The County remits to the District those charges which are placed on the property tax roll and handles all
delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties.

Nonoperating revenues consist of investment income and special charges that can be used for either operating or
capital purposes.

Capital contributions consist of contributed capital assets, connection, and capacity fees that are legally restricted
for capital expenditures by State law or by Board actions that established those charges. Connection and capacity
fees represent a one-time contribution of resources to the District, imposed on contractors and developers for the
purpose of financing capital improvements.

Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the District. Operating
expenses include costs related to wastewater collection and treatment, as well as engineering and general and
administrative expenses. Other expenses such as investment losses, interest expense, and loss on retirement of
capital assets are reported as non-operating expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has considered subsequent events through September XX, 2014, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Change in Accounting Principles

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This
Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets
and liabilities.

Page 61 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

16

NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined the elements included in
financial statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition,
Concepts Statement 4 provides that reporting a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources
should be limited to those instances identified by the Board in authoritative pronouncements that are established
after applicable due process. Prior to the issuance of this Statement, only two such pronouncements have been
issued. Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, requires the reporting
of a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources for the changes in fair value of hedging
derivative instruments, and Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements, requires a deferred inflow of resources to be reported by a transferor government in a qualifying
service concession arrangement. This Statement amends the financial statement element classification of certain
items previously reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with the definitions in Concepts Statement 4.
This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement
elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the determination
of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations

The District has implemented the provisions of this Statement for the year ended June 30, 2014.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent
To the Measurement Date, which amends Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
As currently provided under Statement No. 68, an employer’s date for measuring its net pension liability (i.e.,
the “measurement date”) may be no earlier than the end of its prior fiscal year. In addition, if an employer makes
contributions after the measurement date, but before the end of its current reporting period, the employer should
recognize the contribution as a deferred outflow of resources.

However, in transitioning to the new accounting standards, GASB Statement No. 68 also required that the
employer recognize deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources only if it is practical for the
employer to determine all deferred outflows and deferred inflows. If it is not practical, the beginning balances of
deferred outflows and deferred inflows should not be reported. However, in situations where the employer makes
contributions after the measurement date, not recognizing the contributions in deferred outflows of resources
could result in a substantial understatement of the employer’s beginning net position.

To prevent this understatement, GASB Statement No. 71 requires that, at transition, a government should
recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions made after the measurement
date of the beginning net pension liability. However, it continues to require that the beginning balances for other
deferred outflows and deferred inflows be reported at transition only if it is practical to determine such amounts.

Both Statements No. 68 and 71 are effective simultaneously for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. Early
implementation is encouraged. Management is evaluating the impact the Statements will have on the financial
statements.

Page 62 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

17

NOTE #2 – CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 is summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2014

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and improvements 5,593,929$ -$ -$ -$ 5,593,929$
Construction in progress 31,800,155 19,925,759 - (35,713,574) 16,012,340
Capacity permits and easements 6,043,632 174,240 - - 6,217,872

Total Capital assets, not being depreciated: 43,437,716 20,099,999 - (35,713,574) 27,824,141

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewage collection facilities 402,324,798 712,683 (1,158,187) (1,743,374) 400,135,920
Sewage treatment facilities 163,545,041 - (446,465) (5,536,447) 157,562,129
District facilities 39,177,008 - (951,232) 35,025,062 73,250,838
General equipment 4,247,033 46,824 (75,164) 2,341,583 6,560,276
Fleet - 800,820 (248,648) 5,698,186 6,250,358

Total Capital assets, being depreciated: 609,293,880 1,560,327 (2,879,696) 35,785,010 643,759,521

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Sewage collection facilities (209,490,165) (9,687,906) 613,807 3,806,911 (214,757,353)
Sewage treatment facilities (88,437,256) (4,584,708) 336,365 14,815,278 (77,870,321)
District facilities (16,676,712) (2,067,840) 813,088 (13,720,710) (31,652,174)
General equipment (3,085,740) (510,795) 75,164 (1,418,109) (4,939,480)
Fleet - (367,861) 244,538 (3,483,370) (3,606,693)

Total Accumulated depreciation: (317,689,873) (17,219,110) 2,082,962 - (332,826,021)

Total capital assets, being depreciated , net 291,604,007 (15,658,783) (796,734) 35,785,010 310,933,500

Total Capital Assets, net 335,041,723$ 4,441,216$ (796,734)$ 71,436$ 338,757,641$

Construction work in progress consists primarily of the direct construction costs associated with numerous
District projects plus related construction overhead. The District has outstanding construction contract
commitments on capital projects approximating $15.6 million at June 30, 2014.

Page 63 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

18

NOTE #2 – CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 is summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2013

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and improvements 5,395,903$ 198,026$ -$ -$ 5,593,929$
Construction in progress 25,094,235 11,868,287 - (5,162,367) 31,800,155
Capacity permits and easements 6,043,632 - - - 6,043,632

Total Capital assets, not being depreciated: 36,533,770 12,066,313 - (5,162,367) 43,437,716

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewage collection facilities 397,641,506 4,009,985 (693,699) 1,367,006 402,324,798
Sewage treatment facilities 160,543,832 - (566,051) 3,567,260 163,545,041
District facilities 39,932,779 565,915 (1,473,622) 151,936 39,177,008
General equipment 5,969,586 85,625 (1,884,343) 76,165 4,247,033

Total Capital assets, being depreciated: 604,087,703 4,661,525 (4,617,715) 5,162,367 609,293,880

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Sewage collection facilities (200,014,215) (9,828,694) 352,744 - (209,490,165)
Sewage treatment facilities (84,045,740) (4,527,357) 135,841 - (88,437,256)
District facilities (15,761,064) (1,890,764) 975,116 - (16,676,712)
General equipment (4,231,008) (535,666) 1,680,934 - (3,085,740)

Total Accumulated depreciation: (304,052,027) (16,782,481) 3,144,635 - (317,689,873)

Total capital assets, being depreciated , net 300,035,676 (12,120,956) (1,473,080) 5,162,367 291,604,007

Total Capital Assets, net 336,569,446$ (54,643)$ (1,473,080)$ -$ 335,041,723$

NOTE #3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30 are detailed as follows:

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 994,203$ 643,752$
Investments 44,648,195 50,804,062
Restricted investments 10,000 10,000

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 45,652,398$ 51,457,814$

Page 64 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

19

NOTE #3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

B. Authorized Investments by the District

The District’s investment policy and the California Government Code allow the District to invest in the following
investments, with certain limiting provisions that address interest rate, risk, credit risk, and concentration of
credit risk.

Maximum Minimum Maximum Maximum
Authorized Remaining Credit Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio In One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years N/A None None
U.S. Agency Obligations (a) 5 years N/A None None
Bankers Acceptance (b) 180 days A1/P1 (ST) 40% 10%

A (LT)
Certificates of Deposit 180 days N/A 30% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years A1 (ST) 30% 10%

A (LT)
Repurchase Agreements (c) 90 days N/A 10% 10%
Commercial Paper 270 days "Prime" quality 25% 10%
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A N/A 70% None
Corporate Notes (d) 5 years A 30% 10%
Mortgage Pass-through and Asset Backed Securities N/A AAA or Aaa 20% 10%
Money Market Funds N/A AAA or Aaa 20% 10%

a) Securities issued by agencies sponsored by the federal government such as the Federal Farm Credit Bank
(FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA),
and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).

b) Bankers Acceptances issued by institutions the short term obligations of which are rated at a minimum of
“P1” by Moody’s Investor Services (Moody’s) and A1 by Standard & Poor’s, Inc. (S&P); or if the short
term obligations are unrated, the long-term obligations of which are rated a minimum of “A” by S&P.

c) Repurchase agreements must be collateralized with U.S. Treasury Obligation or U.S. Agency Securities,
which must maintain a market value of at least 102% of the principal of the repurchase agreement.

d) Securities shall be issued by corporations rated a minimum of “A” by S&P.

Page 65 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

20

NOTE #3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by
maturity as of June 30:

2014
12 months or less 12-24 months Total

U.S. Treasury Obligations 2,002,187$ 5,031,948$ 7,034,135$
U.S. Agency Obligations:

FHLB - 1,000,150 1,000,150
FNMA - 1,001,700 1,001,700

Corporate Notes 3,580,240 2,578,155 6,158,395
Certificates of Deposit 3,942,289 239,814 4,182,103
LAIF 25,271,923 - 25,271,923
Local Government Investment Pool (CAMP) 9,789 - 9,789

Total Investments 34,806,428 9,851,767 44,658,195
Cash in bank and money market funds 994,203 - 994,203

Total Cash and Investments 35,800,631$ 9,851,767$ 45,652,398$

2013
12 months or less 12-24 months Total

U.S. Treasury Obligations 2,014,140$ 2,004,063$ 4,018,203$
U.S. Agency Obligations:

FHLB 4,033,740 - 4,033,740
FNMA 931,956 1,997,300 2,929,256

Corporate Notes 4,264,164 1,576,605 5,840,769
Certificates of Deposit 1,228,401 720,316 1,948,717
LAIF 32,009,735 - 32,009,735
Local Government Investment Pool (CAMP) 33,642 - 33,642

Total Investments 44,515,778 6,298,284 50,814,062
Cash in bank and money market funds 643,752 - 643,752

Total Cash and Investments 45,159,530$ 6,298,284$ 51,457,814$

Maturities of

Maturities of

Page 66 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

21

NOTE #3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

D. LAIF Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The
District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value
of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and is based in the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are
collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain
state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United
States Treasury Notes and Bills and corporations. The carrying value of LAIF approximates fair value. At June
30, 2014, these investments mature in an average of 232 days.

E. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2014 for each investment type:

Aaa Aa3 A1 A3 A2 Total
U.S. Agency Obligations

FHLB 1,000,150$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,000,150$
FNMA 1,001,700 - - - - 1,001,700

Corporate Notes - 1,565,435 3,564,200 1,028,760 - 6,158,395
Local Government Investment Pool (CAMP) 9,789 - - - - 9,789

Totals 2,011,639$ 1,565,435$ 3,564,200$ 1,028,760$ -$ 8,170,034
Exempt from credit rate disclosure

U.S. Treasury Obligations 7,034,135
Certificates of deposit 4,182,103

Not rated
California Local Agency Investment Fund 25,271,923

Cash and cash equivalents 994,203
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 45,652,398$

Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2013 for each investment type:

Aaa Aa3 A1 A3 A2 Total
U.S. Agency Obligations

FHLB 4,033,740$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 4,033,740$
FNMA 2,929,256 - - - - 2,929,256
Corporate Notes - 2,726,484 2,050,485 - 1,063,800 5,840,769

Local Government Investment Pool (CAMP) 33,642 - - - - 33,642
Totals 6,996,638$ 2,726,484$ 2,050,485$ -$ 3,996,910$ 12,837,407

Exempt from credit rate disclosure
U.S. Treasury Obligations 4,018,203
Certificates of deposit 1,948,717

Not rated
California Local Agency Investment Fund 32,009,735

Cash and cash equivalents 643,752
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 51,457,814$

Page 67 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

22

NOTE #3 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

F. Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a
single issuer.

As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the District did not have investments held that are more than five percent
of the District’s total investments.

G. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District’s
policy, as well as the California Government Code, requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of June 30,
2014, the District’s total bank balance of $2,564,579 was either collateralized or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Investments

This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The California
Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit
risk for investments. However, the District’s policy states that all security transactions entered into by the
District shall be conducted on delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. All securities purchased or acquired shall
be delivered to the District by book entry, physical delivery, or by third party custodial agreement as required by
CGC Section 53601. The collateralization on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements will adhere to the
amount required under CGC Section 53601(i) (2).

Page 68 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

23

NOTE #4 – JOINT VENTURES

Alameda County Water District Financing Authority

The Alameda County Water District Financing Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, was established through
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the Alameda County Water District (ACWD) and Union Sanitary
District (USD) on November 14, 2011 for the purpose of assisting in the financing and refinancing of capital
improvement projects of the ACWD and to finance working capital for the ACWD. The debts, liabilities, and
obligations of the Authority do not constitute debts, liabilities, and obligations of Union Sanitary District. The
Authority is administered by the Board, which consists of one member from Union Sanitary District and five
members from the Alameda County Water District.

Investment in East Bay Dischargers Authority

The District has an 18.7 percent interest in East Bay Discharges Authority (EBDA), a Joint Powers Authority
established under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California. As a separate legal entity, EBDA
exercises full power and authority within the scope of the related Joint Powers Agreement, including the
preparation of annual budgets, accountability for all funds, the power to make and execute contracts and the right
to sue and be sued. Obligations and liabilities of EBDA are not those of the District and the other participating
entities.

EBDA is governed by a board of directors consisting of representatives from each member agency. The board
controls the operations of EBDA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets,
independent of any influence by member agencies beyond their representation on the Board.

EBDA constructed and operates an export pumping facility through which all treated wastewater in the area is
discharged. The other participants (and their ownership percentages) are the City of Hayward (33 percent), the
City of San Leandro (18.6 percent), and the Oro Loma and Castro Valley Sanitary Districts (collectively, 29.7
percent). The District has rights to 18.7 percent of EBDA’s capacity.

Because the District has the ability to exercise influence over operating and financial policies of the EBDA, the
District’s proportionate share of EBDA’s net position, excluding sole use of facilities, and the District’s share of
its undivided ownership (18.7 percent) in EBDA’s total net equity, have been recorded as an investment in
EBDA accounted for under the equity method.

Summary financial information for EBDA, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 and for the years then ended, the most
recent audited information available, is as follows:

2013 2012
Total Assets 35,164,995$ 35,461,881$
Total liabilities 1,045,918 849,863
Net position value of EBDA 34,119,077 34,612,018
District's share at 18.7% 6,380,267 6,472,447

Net loss on equity investment in EBDA 92,180$ 89,170$

EBDA has no outstanding debt.

Page 69 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

24

NOTE #4 – JOINT VENTURES – CONTINUED

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the District was charged $1,052,368 and $1,060,693,
respectively, by EBDA primarily for operating costs. Such costs are included in the wastewater treatment
expenses by the District for financial reporting purposes.

The financial statement for EBDA may be obtained from the EBDA, 2651 Grant Avenue, San Lorenzo, CA
94580-1841.

NOTE #5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations at June 30, 2014 are summarized as below:

Maturity Interest Balance Balance Current
Date Rate 7/1/13 Additions Retirements 6/30/14 Portion

2003 State Revolving Fund Loan - Irvington 08/30/23 2.4% 8,689,163$ -$ 699,624$ 7,989,539$ 716,415$
2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - Willow 11/16/27 2.4% 1,351,877 - 75,939 1,275,938 77,762
2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - Newark 01/26/30 2.7% 9,246,018 - 435,762 8,810,256 447,528
2008 State Revolving Fund Loan - Hetch Hetchy 11/17/28 2.7% 1,794,865 - 91,173 1,703,692 93,634
2009 State Revolving Fund Loan - Cedar Blvd. 02/26/30 2.5% 1,746,236 - 83,694 1,662,542 85,786
2011 State Revolving Fund Loan - Primary Cl. 01/15/33 2.7% 8,737,074 291,330 351,691 8,676,713 355,510
2011 State Revolving Fund Loan - Substation 1 02/28/32 2.6% 2,335,432 - 96,606 2,238,826 99,118
2011 State Revolving Fund Loan - Boyce Rd. Lift Station 03/31/33 2.6% 4,839,862 1,514,148 - 6,354,010 252,007
2014 State Revolving Fund Loan- Thickener Control Building 03/31/36 2.1% - 776,599 - 776,599 -
Compensated absences n/a n/a 915,281 949,268 966,653 897,896 897,896

41,563,612$ 3,531,345$ 4,708,946$ 40,386,011$ 3,025,656$

A. 2003 State Revolving Fund Loan – Irvington

During 2003, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. As of March 26, 2004, $14,301,057, the maximum
loan amount, had been drawn. The interest rate on the loan is 2.4 percent and is payable in twenty annual
installments, beginning on year after initial loan disbursement. The purpose of this loan was to finance the
Irvington Equalization Storage Facilities project.

B. 2008 State Revolving Fund Loan – Willow

During 2008, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.4 percent and is
payable in twenty annual installments, beginning one year after initial loan disbursement. The purpose of this
loan was to finance the Willow/Central Avenue sanitary sewer rehabilitation project. The maximum amount of
this agreement is $1,749,329 based upon projected costs to be incurred.

Page 70 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

25

NOTE #5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS – CONTINUED

C. 2008 State Revolving Fund Loan – Newark Pump Station

During 2008, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and is
payable in twenty annual installments, beginning in 2011. The purpose of this loan was to finance the Newark
Pump Station project. The maximum amount of this agreement is $10,283,321 based upon projected costs to be
incurred. As of June 30, 2014, $10,283,322, the maximum loan amount, has been advanced under this
agreement.

D. 2008 State Revolving Fund Loan – Hetch Hetchy

During 2008, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after initial loan disbursements. The purpose of this
loan is to finance the lower Hetch Hetchy sewer rehabilitation project. The maximum amount of this agreement
is $2,212,432 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2014, $2,113,379 has been advanced
under this agreement.

E. 2009 State Revolving Fund Loan – Cedar Boulevard

During 2009, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.5 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the Cedar Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The maximum amount of this
agreement is $2,052,841 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2014, $1,998,384 has been
advanced under this agreement.

F. 2011 State Revolving Fund Loan – Primary Clarifier

During 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the rehabilitation of primary clarifiers (Nos. 1 through 4) at the Alvarado Wastewater
Treatment Plant. The maximum amount of this agreement is $8,821,860 based upon projected costs to be
incurred. As of June 30, 2014, $8,821,860 has been advanced under this agreement.

Page 71 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

26

NOTE #5 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS – CONTINUED

G. 2011 State Revolving Fund Loan – Substation 1

During 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.6 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the replacement of Substation 1 to ensure its continual operation. The maximum amount of
this agreement is $2,676,485 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2014, $2,412,908 has
been advanced under this agreement.

H. 2011 State Revolving Fund Loan – Boyce Rd. Lift Station

During 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.6 percent and will
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of
this loan is to finance the replacement of Boyce Road Lift Station to ensure its continual operation. The
maximum amount of this agreement is $6,196,671 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30,
2014, $6,196,671 has been advanced under this agreement.

I. 2011 State Revolving Fund Loan –Thickener Control Building

During December 2013, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources
Control Board in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.1
percent and will be payable in nineteen annual installments beginning September 2017. The purpose of this loan
is to finance the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project to ensure its continual operation. The
maximum amount of this agreement is $12.2 million based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30,
2014, $776,559 has been advanced under this agreement.

J. Debt Service Requirements

Future annual repayment requirements as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total
2015 2,127,761$ 889,657$ 3,017,418$
2016 2,176,158 850,139 3,026,297
2017 2,231,944 803,445 3,035,389
2018 2,320,945 771,919 3,092,864
2019 2,380,304 722,101 3,102,405

2020-2024 12,846,603 2,816,870 15,663,473
2025-2029 9,704,009 1,493,092 11,197,101
2030-2034 5,563,279 376,693 5,939,972
2035-2038 137,112 7,362 144,474

Totals 39,488,115$ 8,731,278$ 48,219,393$

Page 72 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

27

NOTE #6 - PENSION PLAN

Substantially all District employees are eligible to participate in a pension plan offered by California Public
Employees Retirement System (CALPERS) to the District, an agent multiple employer defined benefit pension
plan which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers.
CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to
plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. The benefit provisions and all other
requirements have been established and may be amended by State statute and District resolution. Benefits are
based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Funding contributions for the Plan
are determined annually based on an actuarial study as of June 30 by CALPERS. The Plan’s provisions and
benefits in effect at June 30, 2014 are summarized as follows.

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service
Benefit payment Monthly for life
Minimum retirement age 50
Benefit factor per year of service 2.0 - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rate 8%
Required employer contribution rate 16.399%

CALPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method.
Under this method, the District’s total normal benefit cost for each employee for date of hire to date of retirement
is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal benefit cost under this method is the
level amount the District must pay annually to fund and employee’s projected retirement benefit. Projections of
benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
projection of benefits does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding
limitations. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities. The
actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are also used to compute the actuarial accrued
liability. The District uses the actuarially determined percentages of payroll to calculate and pay contribution to
CALPERS. This results in no net pension obligations or unpaid contributions. The required employer
contributions, as determined by CalPERS, for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $2,287,910 and
$2,248,207 respectively.

Effective June 6, 2013, employees hired before January 1, 2013 will pay additional contribution of 1.5 percent
for pension; employees hired after January 1, 2013 will be subject to a new formula and contributions as
provided in recent legislation. That obligation is not reflected within the actuarial accrued liability disclosed in
the required supplementary information section. The annual pension costs, including both the employer and
employee portion paid by the District, for the years ended June 30:

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2014 2,908,247$ 100% -
2013 3,069,290 100% -
2012 2,869,537 100% -

Page 73 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

28

NOTE #6 - PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

CALPERS uses the Entry Age Normal Cost Method to value Plan obligations and the market related value
method of valuing the Plan’s assets. An investment rate of return of 7.5 percent is assumed, including inflation at
2.75 percent. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary by duration of service. Changes in liability due to
plan amendments, changes in actuarial assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level
percentage of payroll on a closed basis over twenty years. Investment gains and losses are tracked and amortized
over 30 years. Salaries are projected to increase from 3.30 percent to 14.20 percent depending on age, service,
and type of employment.

Funded Status: The schedule of funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 98,458,686$
Actuarial value of plan assets 81,479,378
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 16,979,308$
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 82.8%
Covered payroll (active plan members) 13,063,048$
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 130.0%

Audited annual financial statements are available from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-
2709.

NOTE #7 - OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS

A. Postemployment Healthcare Plan (OPEB)

Plan Description. The District’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan provides medical benefits to
employees who satisfy the requirements for retirement under CalPERS (attained age 50 with five years of service
or satisfaction of the requirements for a disability retirement.) The amount of the retiree’s medical benefit is
dependent upon both years of service with the District and the year the employee retires.

The District contracts with CalPERS to administer its retiree health benefit plan (an agent multiple-employer
plan) and to provide an investment vehicle, the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust Fund, to prefund
future OPEB costs. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statute
within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The District chooses among the menu of benefit provisions and
adopts certain benefit provisions by Board resolution. CalPERS issues a separate Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive
Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 95814.

Funding Policy. The District’s annual required contribution of the employer (ARC) is an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal annual costs each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years on a closed basis. The
current ARC rate is 4% of the annual covered payroll, based on the most recent actuarial report dated July 1,
2013. The plan members receiving benefits currently do not make contributions.

Page 74 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

29

NOTE #7 - OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS - CONTINUED

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The following table shows the components of the District’s
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net
OPEB obligation.

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 462,852$
Interest on net OPEB obligation (asset) (96,911)
Adjustment to ARC 88,870
Annual OPEB cost 454,811
Contributions made 462,852
Change in net OPEB obligation (asset) (8,041)

OPEB obligation (asset) - beginning of year (1,435,718)
OPEB obligation (asset) - end of year (1,443,759)$

Trend Information. The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation (asset) is as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Actual Employer Percentage Net OPEB
Ending Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation (Asset)

6/30/2014 454,811$ 462,852$ 102% (1,443,759)$
6/30/2013 438,130 448,284 102% (1,435,718)
6/30/2012 346,615 363,108 105% (1,425,564)

Funded Status. The schedule of funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2013 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 7,568,777$
Actuarial value of plan assets 3,377,623
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 4,191,154$
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 44.6%
Covered payroll (active plan members) 13,310,618$
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 31.5%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary information presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Page 75 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

30

NOTE #7 - OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS – CONTINUED

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods:
Valuation date July 1, 2013
Actuarial cost method Entry age, Normal cost
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll
Amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return (funded) 6.75%
Salary increase 3.25%
Healthcare cost trend rate 8.5% initial; 4.5% ultimate
Inflation Rate 3.25%

B. 401(a) Plans

The District sponsors three internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) money purchase retirement plans for
unclassified employees through the ICMA Retirement Corporation. The plans were established and can be
amended by Board resolution and, for certain terms, by participant agreement. Eligibility for participation in a
particular plan is dependent on job classification. Within each plan, participating employees contribute the same
dollar amount, and the District makes matching contributions on their behalf. The District and the participants
both contributed a total of $32,594 and $34,185 to the plans for the years ended June 30, 2014, and 2013,
respectively.

C. Deferred Compensation Plan

District employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a District sponsored deferred compensation
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this plan, participants are not taxed
on the deferred portion of their compensation until distribution. Distributions may be made only at termination,
retirement, death, or, in an emergency, as defined by the plan.

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a trust for the exclusive
benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these plans are not the District
assets and are not subject to District control, they have been excluded from these general purpose financial
statements.

Page 76 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

31

NOTE #8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is a member of the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA). CSRMA covers
general liability and workers’ compensation claims. In addition, commercial insurance is purchased for excess
liability, property, and employee dishonesty coverage. The District has a $500,000 deductible for general
liability coverage, and no deductible for workers’ compensation coverage.

Claims and judgments, including a provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss is
deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed above, the
District has coverage for such claims, but it has retained the risk for the deductible or uninsured portion of these
claims. The District’s liability for uninsured claims is limited to general liability claims, as discussed above.

NOTE #9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The District is contingently liable in connection with claims and contracts arising in the normal course of its
activities. District management is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a
significant effect on the financial position of the District.

Page 77 of 153



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 78 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

33

Schedule of Funding Progress for Pension Plan

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Valuation Date Actuarial Value Liability (AAL) - Unfunded Funded Covered Percentage of

June 30, of Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
2012 81,479,378$ 98,458,686$ 16,979,308$ 82.8% 13,063,048$ 130.0%
2011 77,586,175 94,015,409 16,429,234 82.5% 12,767,707 128.7%
2010 73,970,831 88,741,572 14,770,741 83.4% 12,301,216 120.1%

Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health Benefit Plan

Date of Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
July 1, 2013 3,377,623$ 7,568,777$ 4,191,154$ 45% 13,310,618$ 31.5%
July 1, 2011 2,849,311 6,557,147 3,707,836 43% 12,094,561 30.7%
July 1, 2010 2,202,422 5,120,503 2,918,081 43% 11,590,155 25.2%

Page 79 of 153



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 80 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULES OF COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

35

2014 2013
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Net capital assets 338,757,641$ 335,041,723$

Less long term debt:
State revolving fund (39,488,115) (40,648,331)

Net investment in capital assets 299,269,526$ 294,393,392$

RESTRICTED
Expendable:

Capacity purposes 14,165,399$ 16,093,405$
Nonexpendable:

State revolving fund loan contingency requirement 3,457,379 4,204,415

Total restricted net position 17,622,778$ 20,297,820$

UNRESTRICTED
Renewal and replacement:

Structural 3,563,478$ 8,079,734$
Vehicle and equipment 956,195 1,150,234
Information system 1,399,153 1,368,371
Plant and pump station (646) 158,524
Non-capital project expense (NECB) 134,820 310,580

Investment in East Bay Dischargers Authority 6,380,267 6,472,447
Risk management 1,500,000 1,500,000
Cash flow 16,050,179 15,139,823
Emergency 2,750,000 2,000,000
Pretreatment 119,783 112,797

Total unrestricted 32,853,229$ 36,292,510$

NET POSITION 349,745,533$ 350,983,722$

Page 81 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULES OF COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

36

Note A – Restricted Components of Net Position

The amounts have legal restrictions as to their uses. Those amounts restricted for capacity purposes can be used
only for acquisition of capacity related capital assets. Those amounts restricted as bond reserve can be used only
for debt service.

Note B – Unrestricted Components of Net Position

These amounts have been designated by Board resolution for various purposes including renewal and
replacement and a reserve for economic uncertainty.

Page 82 of 153



U
N

IO
N

SA
N

IT
A

R
Y

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
S

O
F

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
B

E
FO

R
E

D
E

PR
E

C
IA

T
IO

N
FO

R
T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

S
E

N
D

E
D

JU
N

E
30

,2
01

4
A

N
D

20
13

37

Se
w

ag
e

Se
w

ag
e

Se
w

ag
e

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

&
G

en
er

al
&

Se
w

ag
e

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

&
G

en
er

al
&

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
En

gi
ne

er
in

g
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e

To
ta

l
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e
To

ta
l

Sa
la

rie
sa

nd
w

ag
es

5,
10

0,
11

8
$

6,
35

9,
67

8
$

3,
35

7,
03

4
$

14
,8

16
,8

30
$

4,
80

0,
37

6
$

6,
28

2,
57

8
$

2,
98

1,
25

2
$

14
,0

64
,2

06
$

Em
pl

oy
ee

be
ne

fit
s

2,
01

5,
55

8
2,

65
2,

30
3

1,
61

9,
60

3
6,

28
7,

46
4

1,
91

8,
09

4
2,

64
5,

86
1

1,
57

4,
47

8
6,

13
8,

43
3

R
ec

ru
itm

en
ta

nd
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
67

,8
52

94
,4

95
24

9,
77

6
41

2,
12

3
89

,4
45

98
,1

60
19

6,
33

0
38

3,
93

5
Te

m
po

ra
ry

he
lp

8,
46

9
47

,2
53

-
55

,7
22

-
10

,4
76

31
,2

53
41

,7
29

R
ep

ai
rs

an
d

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

1,
34

4,
23

2
45

8,
10

5
10

,3
27

1,
81

2,
66

4
1,

48
2,

66
8

50
9,

88
2

11
,2

13
2,

00
3,

76
3

O
pe

ra
tin

g
su

pp
lie

s
1,

80
5,

45
4

23
0,

15
7

-
2,

03
5,

61
1

1,
67

4,
60

5
23

2,
20

6
-

1,
90

6,
81

1
O

ff
ic

e
an

d
sa

fe
ty

su
pp

lie
s

13
7,

17
8

23
3,

73
1

14
3,

52
8

51
4,

43
7

14
4,

14
2

17
9,

20
0

24
5,

88
0

56
9,

22
2

In
su

ra
nc

e
-

-
22

5,
72

2
22

5,
72

2
-

-
22

2,
42

5
22

2,
42

5
C

on
tra

ct
ua

ls
er

vi
ce

s
83

7,
68

4
66

,9
13

-
90

4,
59

7
70

0,
98

6
47

,5
14

10
,5

69
75

9,
06

9
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
se

rv
ic

es
22

4,
80

2
74

,1
90

64
4,

34
5

94
3,

33
7

16
8,

31
6

35
,0

27
53

4,
40

4
73

7,
74

7
U

til
iti

es
2,

23
5,

18
0

63
,7

47
77

,4
04

2,
37

6,
33

1
2,

19
0,

98
1

53
,0

95
63

,0
23

2,
30

7,
09

9
Ea

st
B

ay
D

is
ch

ar
ge

rs
A

ut
ho

rit
y

-
op

er
at

in
g

ch
ar

ge
s

1,
05

2,
36

8
-

-
1,

05
2,

36
8

1,
06

0,
69

3
-

-
1,

06
0,

69
3

N
on

-c
ap

ita
lp

ro
je

ct
s

52
4,

29
5

52
4,

29
5

27
1,

76
3

1,
32

0,
35

3
1,

80
5,

98
5

1,
80

5,
98

5
20

0,
08

4
3,

81
2,

05
4

Se
w

er
Se

rv
ic

e
ch

ar
ge

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e
fe

e
35

,1
86

35
,1

86
35

,1
86

10
5,

55
8

35
,0

84
35

,0
84

35
,0

84
10

5,
25

2
R

en
ts

/L
ea

se
s

22
,1

47
29

,7
02

-
51

,8
49

17
,5

54
19

,2
77

5,
47

3
42

,3
04

To
ta

l
15

,4
10

,5
23

$
10

,8
69

,7
55

$
6,

63
4,

68
8

$
32

,9
14

,9
66

$
16

,0
88

,9
29

$
11

,9
54

,3
45

$
6,

11
1,

46
8

$
34

,1
54

,7
42

$

20
13

20
14

P
ag

e 
83

 o
f 1

53



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

38

The District's insurance policies and coverages in effect at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

General liability (pooled liability program)
Bodily injury, property damage, and personal injury 25,500,000$
Public entity errors and omissions and other related practices 25,500,000$
Employment related practices 25,500,000$

Insured Value
Auto physical damage (primary insurance program) 3,112,791$
Workers' Compensation 1,750,000$
Group Health and Life Contract
Employee Disability and Salary Continuance Contract

Property insurance, all property 250,928,297$
Accounts receivable No sublimit

Employee Dishonesty Bond Coverages:
Public Employee Dishonesty Bond 1,000,000$
Forgery and alteration 1,000,000$
Computer Fraud 1,000,000$

Page 84 of 153



============================
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2011

===============================

Page 85 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Page
Independent Auditors' Report On Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and 
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133 1

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 3

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 4

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

I. Summary of Auditors' Results 5

II. Financial Statement Findings 6

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 7

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Questioned Costs 8

Table of Contents

Page 86 of 153



1
5000 Hopyard Road, Suite 335    Pleasanton, CA  94588    Tel: 925.734.6600    Fax: 925.734.6611    www.vtdcpa.com

F R E S N O  !! L A G U N A  H I L L S  ! P A L O  A L T O  ! P L E A S A N T O N  ! R A N C H O  C U C A M O N G A  ! R I V E R S I D E  ! S A C R A M E N T O

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District
Union City, California

Compliance

We have audited Union Sanitary District’s (the District) compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The District’s major federal programs 
are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each 
of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s 
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2011. 

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing 

Page 87 of 153



2

procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the Union Sanitary District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 16, 2011, which contained unqualified opinions on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, federal awarding 
agencies, and the Controller of the State of California and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.

Pleasanton, California
May 21, 2014

Page 88 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

3

Federal
Catalog Federal

Federal Grantor / Pass-through Grantor / Program Title Grant Identifying Number Number Expenditures

Environmental Protection Agency

Passed through State Water Resources Control Board

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds C-06-5220-110 66.458 197,893$      
C-06-5221-110 66.458 497,592        

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 695,485$      

Page 89 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

4

NOTE #1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards 
programs of the Union Sanitary District (District).  The District’s reporting entity is defined in Note #1 of the 
District’s basic financial statements.  All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as 
federal awards passed through other governmental agencies to the District are included in the accompanying 
schedule.

B. Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note #1 of the District’s basic financial statements.

C. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The loan associated with federal award funds is reported within the District’s basic financial statements under 
the financial statement caption current portion of long-term debt and long-term debt, net of current portion.

D. Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the amounts 
reported in the related federal financial reports.  However, certain federal financial reports are filed based on 
cash expenditures.  As such, certain timing differences may exist in the recognition of revenues and 
expenditures between the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the federal financial reports.

E.  Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Numbers

The CFDA numbers included in this report were determined based on the program name, review of grant 
contract information, and the Office of Management and Budget’s Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

Page 90 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

I. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

5

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Unqualified

No
No
No

FEDERAL AWARDS

No
None Reported

Unqualified

No

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

66.458
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State 
Revolving Funds

300,000$         
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with Circular   
  A-133, Section .510(a)

Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over major programs:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?

Page 91 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

6

None.

Page 92 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

7

None.

Page 93 of 153



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

8

None.

Page 94 of 153



P
ag

e 
95

 o
f 1

53



P
ag

e 
96

 o
f 1

53



P
ag

e 
97

 o
f 1

53



P
ag

e 
98

 o
f 1

53



P
ag

e 
99

 o
f 1

53



P
ag

e 
10

0 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

1 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

2 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

3 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

4 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

5 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

6 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

7 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

8 
of

 1
53



P
ag

e 
10

9 
of

 1
53



Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 
Thursday, October 16, 2014 at 9:30 a.m. 

Prepared by: P. Eldredge 
 

Commissioners Handley, Dias, Johnson, Peixoto and Prola were all present.   
 
The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 
Minutes, the List of Disbursements, and the Treasurer’s Report for September 2014.  

 
For the General Manager’s report, Mike outlined the results of the refurbishment of an EBDA 
manhole via epoxy coating to stop the migration of ground water. The project, which was done 
at the Hayward Marsh turnout, was so successful and cost effective that they are looking at 
utilizing the same method for several more manholes. 

 
The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the Regulatory Affairs, Operation & 
Maintenance, Financial Management, Personnel, and Management Advisory Committees. The 
following items were discussed: 
 

Managers Advisory Committee discussed the proposed changes to the Brown and Caldwell 
proposal related to the outfall study to include support services to EBDA staff as they will be 
contracting directly with the contractors that will be preforming the work. There was a brief 
discussion regarding the BACWA nutrient workshop that took place on October 6th of this 
year. Tim Grillo from USD was one of the presenters at this workshop, and the information 
presented was very informative to the group regarding the District’s pilot project on side 
stream nitrogen removal. Discussions will continue as treatment and regulatory agencies 
continue to deal with this topic. A wet weather operations plan from LAVMA was presented 
to the group outlining the planned operations of the LAVMA facility, should it ever decide to 
rain again. 

 
Financial Management Committee indicated that the independent auditor was at EBDA the 
previous week and did not have any findings. It is anticipated that the auditor’s report will be 
presented to the EBDA Board at the November meeting. EBDA staff is looking into sending 
out an RFP for auditing services to replace the current firm they have been using for the last 
five years. Per the current audit, member agencies will be receiving a refund on operational 
costs due to the dry weather as EBDA ended up spending less on power and chemicals. EBDA 
is showing a refund to USD in the amount of $65,953.32 for FY 2013/14. 

 
Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed the status report (informational only, no action 
required) for the NPDES permit. EBDA staff did not determine any violations of the combined 
effluent in September of 2014. EBDA has not had any permit violations since April of 2006.  
There was a brief update on BACWA’s strategy for Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s). The 
current concept is to develop a proactive enforcement action that will provide a clear 
definition of the financial regulatory penalty and formalize Administrative Civil Liabilities. In 
essence, this would provide some protection for the agencies from third party lawsuits. 

Page 110 of 153



BACWA has been reaching out to the agencies to ensure they are comfortable with the 
approach before presenting to the Regional Board. The next step is to approach the Board to 
get their input and feedback on the concept. The BACWA regulatory issues matrix was 
included in the packet and briefly discussed. The matrix is produced several times annually 
and provided to BACWA members. The issues that could have the most impact on the EBDA 
agencies are: 
 

a. Actions by the State Water Board on nutrient permit issues 
b. Development of a Selenium standard for the Suisun Bay on South Bay dischargers 
c. Streamlining of recycled water permits statewide versus permitting requirements by 

the SF Water Board whose requirements are less stringent 
d. Ongoing tightening of greenhouse gas emission requirements 

  
Commissioner Dias asked which State agency would be responsible for setting permit limits 
for direct potable reuse, and if it was an issue that DSRSD was giving its customers free tertiary 
treated wastewater. Mike answered that it would be a combination of the Water Board and 
Health Department, and noted DSRSD customers were required to sign a waiver before 
receiving the treated water. 
 
O&M Committee reviewed the contract amendment for the services provided by Brown and 
Caldwell for the outfall pipe study. Attached to this update is a copy of the presentation from 
Brown and Caldwell that provides additional detail on the scope and nature of the work being 
proposed. EBDA staff is recommending that they move forward with Phase 1 and Phase 2 of 
the work plan and not move forward with Phase 3 and 4 at this time (see attached table for 
phases and descriptions).  
 
Joint Powers Agreement Ad Hoc Committee outlined the strategy for the upcoming 
discussions regarding the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA). The current strategy, which was 
acceptable to everyone, includes modifying the agreement to address non-controversial 
issues and having all the agencies approve the “clean” version.  Discussions would then 
begin on topics that will likely require more time and attention such as fixed and variable 
cost allocations and other financial terms and conditions. The intent is to start with the 
items that should not be controversial to get the agreement on everyone’s radar screen and 
get the process started in a positive direction instead of trying to address all of the issues at 
once. Additional “clean-up” edits will be presented to the agencies in the next month or so. 

 
 

The Commission unanimously passed the following resolution: 
 

o Resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute Amendment No.1 to the 
engineering services agreement with Brown and Caldwell to provide engineering 
assistance for outfall inspection, bid document and condition assessment not to exceed 
$75,000 
 

 

Page 111 of 153



Tr
an

sp
or

t S
ys

te
m

 O
ut

fa
ll 

Pi
pe

 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

Co
nd

iti
on

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Ea
st

 B
ay

 D
is

ch
ar

ge
rs

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 

Se
pt

em
be

r 1
7 

| 
20

14
 

P
ag

e 
11

2 
of

 1
53



 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

4 

  E
as

t B
ay

 D
is

ch
ar

ge
rs

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 

P
ag

e 
11

3 
of

 1
53



•D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

tra
te

gy
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 in

te
gr

ity
 

an
d 

ov
er

al
l c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ou

tfa
ll 

•D
ev

el
op

 a
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

  
op

er
at

in
g 

pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 o

ut
fa

ll 
•R

ec
om

m
en

d 
th

e 
m

os
t e

ffi
ci

en
t o

pe
ra

tin
g 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 s
tra

te
gy

 fo
r t

he
 o

ut
fa

ll 
•I

de
nt

ify
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ou

tfa
ll’

s 
lif

e 
cy

cl
e 

be
yo

nd
 it

’s
 e

st
im

at
ed

 8
0-

ye
ar

 d
es

ig
n-

lif
e 

•C
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 fu
tu

re
 re

gu
la

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
 

 St
ud

y 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

5 

P
ag

e 
11

4 
of

 1
53



Co
nd

uc
t E

xt
er

na
l a

nd
 In

te
rn

al
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

6 

P
ag

e 
11

5 
of

 1
53



M
at

er
ia

ls
 

•
Pi

pe
 

•
Jo

in
ts

 
•

Ac
ce

ss
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

 
•

D
iff

us
er

s 
H

yd
ra

ul
ic

s 
Op

er
at

io
ns

 
•

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

vs
 G

ro
w

th
 

•
Se

aw
at

er
 in

tru
si

on
 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
/ 

Se
a 

le
ve

l r
is

e 
•

H
yd

ra
ul

ic
 c

ap
ac

ity
 

•
Sh

or
e-

si
de

 fa
ci

lit
y 

 R
ei

nf
or

ce
d 

Co
nc

re
te

 P
ip

e 
(R

CP
) F

ai
lu

re
 M

od
es

 

In
-s

itu
 In

flu
en

ce
rs

 
•

In
te

rn
al

 
•

H
ig

h 
flo

w
 v

el
oc

ity
 (s

co
ur

, t
hr

us
t) 

•
W

at
er

 c
he

m
is

try
 (n

on
-c

or
ro

si
ve

) 
•

Ex
te

rn
al

 
•

D
iff

er
en

tia
l S

et
tle

m
en

t 
•

D
ur

in
g 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

•
Se

is
m

ic
 e

ve
nt

s 
•

So
ft 

Ba
y 

M
ud

s 
Co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

•
Ti

da
l A

ct
io

n/
Er

os
io

n 

•
Bo

at
 a

nc
ho

r h
its

 
•

Bi
of

ilm
 a

nd
 S

ea
 li

fe
 

 
Br

ow
n 

an
d 

Ca
ld

w
el

l 
7 

P
ag

e 
11

6 
of

 1
53



•
Be

ll 
m

ou
th

 ri
se

r e
nt

ra
nc

e 
•

Al
um

in
um

-b
ro

nz
e 

in
te

gr
al

ly
 

ca
st

 in
 c

on
cr

et
e 

•
Fl

an
ge

 fi
tti

ng
 w

ith
 th

re
ad

ed
 

bo
lt 

ho
le

s 
fo

r f
le

xi
bl

e 
ru

bb
er

 
sp

oo
l e

xp
an

si
on

 jo
in

t 
•

6-
in

ch
 F

le
xi

bl
e 

Ru
bb

er
 

Sp
oo

l E
xp

an
si

on
 Jo

in
t w

ith
  

“8
” 

al
um

in
um

 b
ro

nz
e 

bo
lts

 
•

6-
in

ch
 P

VC
 fl

an
ge

 w
ith

  
ny

lo
n 

bo
lts

 
•

6-
in

ch
 P

VC
 ri

se
r 

•
Te

e 
as

se
m

bl
y 

 D
iff

us
er

s 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

8 

P
ag

e 
11

7 
of

 1
53



•4
8-

in
 A

lu
m

in
um

-B
ro

nz
e 

fla
ng

e 
w

ith
 b

ol
ts

  
an

d 
ga

sk
et

 
•N

eo
pr

en
e 

fla
t g

as
ke

t 
•4

8-
in

 A
lu

m
in

um
-B

ro
nz

e 
fla

ng
e 

 
•C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Jo
in

ts
 a

t 
pi

pe
 b

lo
ck

ou
t  

(M
H 

op
en

in
g)

  
•S

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
nc

ho
r h

its
 

(s
m

al
le

r c
ra

ft)
 

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
ry

 A
cc

es
s 

M
an

ho
le

s 
(1

, 2
, 3

) 

 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

9 

P
ag

e 
11

8 
of

 1
53



•4
8-

in
 A

lu
m

in
um

-B
ro

nz
e 

fla
ng

e 
w

ith
 b

ol
ts

  
an

d 
ga

sk
et

 
•S

in
gl

e 
O-

rin
g 

ga
sk

et
 

•C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
Jo

in
ts

 a
t p

ip
e 

bl
oc

ko
ut

 (M
H

 o
pe

ni
ng

) 
•S

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
nc

ho
r h

its
 

(s
m

al
le

r c
ra

ft)
 

   Te
rm

in
us

 A
cc

es
s 

M
an

ho
le

 (4
) 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

10
 

P
ag

e 
11

9 
of

 1
53



Pr
ev

io
us

 In
sp

ec
tio

ns
  

•
D

iv
er

 s
ur

ve
ys

 in
 1

98
7,

 1
99

4,
 

20
00

 a
nd

 2
00

7 
by

 U
RI

 
•

Fo
cu

se
d 

on
 d

iff
us

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
•

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
in

 2
00

0 
in

cl
ud

ed
 7

50
 

LF
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

vi
a 

RO
V 

 
do

w
ns

tre
am

 fr
om

 fl
ow

 m
et

er
 v

au
lt 

G
en

er
al

 F
in

di
ng

s 
•

5~
10

%
 o

f d
iff

us
er

s 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
/o

r r
ep

ai
r 

•
D

eb
ris

 a
t d

iff
us

er
 p

or
ts

 a
nd

 w
ith

in
 

pi
pe

lin
e 

•
D

eg
ra

de
d 

co
nc

re
te

 m
an

ho
le

 
co

ve
rs

 
  

H
is

to
ric

al
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

11
 

CCh
em

ic
al

 A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 a
 C

or
ro

de
d 

N
ut

 
Fi

nd
in

gs
 –

 c
he

m
ic

al
 c

om
po

si
tio

n 
is

 n
ot

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

al
um

in
um

 b
ro

nz
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

an
d 

m
ay

 c
au

se
 

ga
lv

an
ic

 c
or

ro
si

on
 

P
ag

e 
12

0 
of

 1
53



R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

ys
te

m
 O

ut
fa

ll 
Pi

pe
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

 
Co

nd
iti

on
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

P
ag

e 
12

1 
of

 1
53



D
iv

er
 S

ur
ve

y 
•

In
te

rio
r o

f a
cc

es
s 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 (4

) 

Re
m

ot
el

y 
Op

er
at

ed
 V

eh
ic

le
 (R

OV
) 

•
D

iff
us

er
 

•
Li

m
ite

d 
le

ng
th

 o
f o

ut
fa

ll 

In
te

rn
al

 In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

13
 

P
ag

e 
12

2 
of

 1
53



B
en

ef
its

 o
f u

si
ng

 tw
o 

so
na

rs
…

 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Lo
ok

in
g 

(S
ec

to
r S

ca
n)

 S
on

ar
  

C
om

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 P

ro
fil

in
g 

So
na

r 

Pr
of

ili
ng

 S
on

ar
 A

lo
ne

 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

P
ip

el
in

e 
C

ro
ss

 S
ec

tio
ni

ng
. 

D
et

ec
ts

 D
eb

ris
 B

ui
ld

-u
p.

 
M

ea
su

re
s 

Le
ve

l o
f D

eb
ris

. 
 

- P
ro

fil
in

g 
so

na
rs

 c
an

 o
nl

y 
do

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

at
 it

s 
cu

rre
nt

 s
ca

n 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 m

is
si

ng
 im

po
rta

nt
 fe

at
ur

es
.  

 

M
ul

tib
ea

m
 P

ro
fil

in
g 

D
et

ec
ts

 o
bj

ec
ts

 a
he

ad
 o

f t
he

 
ve

hi
cl

e 
su

ch
 a

s:
 

• J
oi

nt
s 

•
S

ur
fa

ce
 C

ra
ck

s 
•

D
eb

ris
 

•
H

ol
es

  
•

O
ffs

et
s 

M
ul

tib
ea

m
 F

or
w

ar
d 

Lo
ok

in
g 

P
ag

e 
12

3 
of

 1
53



PPh
as

e 
1 

M
an

ho
le

 re
co

nn
ai

ss
an

ce
 (3

 m
os

 - 
$4

0-
$6

5K
) 

•
D

iff
us

er
 ri

se
rs

 a
nd

 p
or

ts
(a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
2,

00
0 

ft)
 

•
Ac

ce
ss

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

(3
 o

n 
di

ffu
se

r, 
1 

on
 p

ip
el

in
e)

 
Ph

as
e 

2 
M

an
ho

le
/d

iff
us

er
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

(s
on

ar
)(1

2m
os

-$
75

-$
10

0K
) 

Ph
as

e 
2 

Op
tio

na
l L

ab
 a

na
ly

si
s 

nu
t c

or
ro

si
on

 &
 s

po
ol

s 
($

25
K)

 
Ph

as
e 

3 
Ba

th
ym

et
ric

 s
ur

ve
y 

en
tir

e 
le

ng
th

 s
id

e 
sc

an
 (3

-5
 y

r) 
 

Ph
as

e 
4 

– 
Co

nc
re

te
 c

or
in

g 

Ex
te

rn
al

 In
sp

ec
tio

ns
 

Br
ow

n 
an

d 
Ca

ld
w

el
l 

15
 

P
ag

e 
12

4 
of

 1
53



Page 125 of 153



Page 126 of 153



Page 127 of 153



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General 
Manager/District 
Engineer 

David M. O’Hara
Attorney 

DATE: October 20, 2014 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent 
  Kim Truong, Administrative Specialist II 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11c. – October 27, 2014 
  Information item:  CAL-CARD QUARTERLY MERCHANT  

ACTIVITY REPORT 

Recommendation

Information Only 

Information 

The attached CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL-Card activity  
for the first quarter of FY 2015.  This covers transactions for the CAL-Card billing 
period June 24, 2014 through September 22, 2014. During this quarter, we had 
184 transactions totaling $41,538.46. 

Page 128 of 153



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

93
99

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
FR

E
M

O
N

T 
FR

E
M

O
N

T
C

A
$

2,
84

1.
00

2
$

1,
42

0.
50

$
0.

00
0

$
2,

84
1.

00
7.

05
%

2
$

0.
00

D
E

V
 S

V
C

S
83

98
C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

91
6-

44
60

38
8

C
A

2,
50

0.
00

2
1,

25
0.

00
0.

00
0

2,
50

0.
00

6.
20

%
2

0.
00

A
S

S
O

C
 O

F 
S

A
N

83
98

C
A

 W
A

TE
R

 E
N

V
 

51
0-

38
2-

78
00

C
A

2,
26

2.
59

14
16

1.
61

0.
00

0
2,

26
2.

59
5.

61
%

14
3.

19
A

S
S

N
59

69
R

E
M

O
TE

70
7-

54
58

19
9

C
A

1,
59

9.
14

1
1,

59
9.

14
0.

00
0

1,
59

9.
14

3.
97

%
1

0.
00

S
A

TE
LL

IT
E

 S
Y

S
TE

E
 

50
47

A
E

D
 S

U
P

E
R

S
TO

R
E

80
0-

54
4-

00
48

W
I

1,
55

2.
00

1
1,

55
2.

00
0.

00
0

1,
55

2.
00

3.
85

%
1

0.
00

O
N

F.
86

41
P

A
Y

P
A

L 
*M

S
A

 S
F 

40
2-

93
5-

77
33

C
A

1,
48

5.
00

4
37

1.
25

0.
00

0
1,

48
5.

00
3.

68
%

4
0.

00
B

A
Y

E
 

50
39

O
W

E
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

50
3-

25
59

05
5

O
R

1,
30

5.
05

1
1,

30
5.

05
0.

00
0

1,
30

5.
05

3.
24

%
1

10
2.

04
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

O
55

99
P

E
TE

R
S

O
N

 P
O

W
E

R
 

51
0-

35
76

20
0

C
A

1,
22

5.
90

2
61

2.
95

0.
00

0
1,

22
5.

90
3.

04
%

2
0.

00
S

Y
S

TE
M

S
59

69
A

M
E

R
IC

A
N

 P
U

B
LI

C
 

81
64

72
61

00
M

O
1,

18
5.

00
3

39
5.

00
0.

00
0

1,
18

5.
00

2.
94

%
3

0.
00

W
O

R
K

S
E

 
50

85
H

O
FF

M
E

Y
E

R
51

0-
89

59
95

5
C

A
1,

03
7.

84
1

1,
03

7.
84

0.
00

0
1,

03
7.

84
2.

57
%

1
83

.5
3

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
89

99
IN

 *
K

E
N

 G
R

A
D

Y
 

41
5-

88
35

92
4

C
A

95
6.

08
2

47
8.

04
0.

00
0

95
6.

08
2.

37
%

2
78

.8
6

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
, I

N
E

 
50

85
A

IR
M

A
IR

85
5-

34
53

55
5

C
A

95
4.

62
2

47
7.

31
0.

00
0

95
4.

62
2.

37
%

2
0.

00

59
69

S
E

A
R

S
.C

O
M

 9
30

0
80

0-
34

9-
43

58
IA

87
3.

03
2

43
6.

52
0.

00
0

87
3.

03
2.

17
%

2
71

.5
9

89
11

B
R

O
W

N
 A

N
D

 
92

5-
21

02
27

7
C

O
80

0.
00

4
20

0.
00

0.
00

0
80

0.
00

1.
98

%
4

0.
00

C
A

LD
W

E
LL

E
 

50
85

X
Y

LE
M

 W
A

TE
R

 
31

5-
56

84
51

6
N

C
76

6.
11

1
76

6.
11

0.
00

0
76

6.
11

1.
90

%
1

0.
00

S
O

LU
TI

O
N

S
 U

S
A

E
 

53
11

S
E

A
R

S
 R

O
E

B
U

C
K

H
A

Y
W

A
R

D
C

A
68

9.
96

1
68

9.
96

0.
00

0
68

9.
96

1.
71

%
1

56
.9

7
12

48
E

 
52

51
A

LL
 IN

D
U

S
TR

IA
L 

B
U

R
LI

N
G

A
M

E
C

A
1,

09
0.

62
1

1,
09

0.
62

40
2.

96
1

68
7.

66
1.

71
%

2
94

.6
2

E
LE

C
TR

IC
 S

E
 

50
85

ZO
R

O
 T

O
O

LS
 IN

C
85

5-
28

99
67

6
IL

65
3.

65
2

32
6.

83
0.

00
0

65
3.

65
1.

62
%

2
0.

00

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 
of

 1
53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

87
34

JE
T-

C
A

R
E

 IN
T'

L,
 IN

C
97

3-
29

29
59

7
N

J
60

1.
66

1
60

1.
66

0.
00

0
60

1.
66

1.
49

%
1

6.
02

an
86

99
W

E
F 

C
S

I
80

0-
66

60
20

6
V

A
57

5.
00

1
57

5.
00

0.
00

0
57

5.
00

1.
43

%
1

0.
00

E
 

50
65

S
TE

V
E

N
65

0-
74

59
14

7
C

A
54

7.
33

4
13

6.
83

0.
00

0
54

7.
33

1.
36

%
4

0.
00

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
E

 
51

69
N

S
I S

O
LU

TI
O

N
S

 IN
C

R
A

LE
IG

H
N

C
50

7.
00

1
50

7.
00

0.
00

0
50

7.
00

1.
26

%
1

0.
00

73
99

W
E

S
TE

R
N

 C
IT

Y
 

91
6-

65
8-

82
23

C
A

50
0.

00
2

25
0.

00
0.

00
0

50
0.

00
1.

24
%

2
0.

00
M

A
G

A
ZI

N
E

73
61

B
O

X
W

O
O

D
 T

E
C

H
88

8-
49

1-
88

33
M

D
50

0.
00

2
25

0.
00

0.
00

0
50

0.
00

1.
24

%
2

0.
00

E
 

52
51

U
S

 S
A

W
S

 IN
C

81
3-

62
1-

80
15

FL
49

3.
39

1
49

3.
39

0.
00

0
49

3.
39

1.
22

%
1

1.
00

pp
ly

52
00

TH
E

 H
O

M
E

 D
E

P
O

T 
N

E
W

A
R

K
C

A
44

6.
54

3
14

8.
85

0.
00

0
44

6.
54

1.
11

%
3

36
.8

7
#6

96
4

80
99

C
O

N
C

E
N

TR
A

24
8-

71
2-

22
31

M
I

43
0.

00
1

43
0.

00
0.

00
0

43
0.

00
1.

07
%

1
0.

00
59

42
A

M
A

ZO
N

A
M

ZN
.C

O
M

/B
IL

L
W

A
51

0.
44

9
56

.7
2

89
.3

8
1

42
1.

06
1.

04
%

10
27

.0
5

M
K

TP
LA

C
E

 P
M

TS
27

41
A

D
S

92
5-

44
93

48
6

C
A

39
6.

99
1

39
6.

99
0.

00
0

39
6.

99
0.

98
%

1
0.

00
R

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
P

H
IC

S
IN

C
57

32
LE

D
TR

O
N

IC
S

 IN
C

.
80

0-
57

94
87

5
C

A
38

7.
49

1
38

7.
49

0.
00

0
38

7.
49

0.
96

%
1

0.
00

73
99

P
U

B
LI

C
 R

IS
K

 
70

3-
52

87
70

1
V

A
38

5.
00

1
38

5.
00

0.
00

0
38

5.
00

0.
96

%
1

0.
00

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

73
11

C
R

A
IG

S
LI

S
T.

O
R

G
41

5-
56

6-
63

94
C

A
37

5.
00

5
75

.0
0

0.
00

0
37

5.
00

0.
93

%
5

0.
00

59
42

A
M

A
ZO

N
.C

O
M

A
M

ZN
.C

O
M

/B
IL

L
W

A
33

0.
56

5
66

.1
1

0.
00

0
33

0.
56

0.
82

%
5

28
.6

7

O
55

32
G

O
O

D
Y

E
A

R
51

0-
78

36
70

0
C

A
32

6.
27

1
32

6.
27

0.
00

0
32

6.
27

0.
81

%
1

0.
00

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
TI

73
92

P
E

S
TI

C
ID

E
83

1-
44

2-
35

36
C

A
32

0.
00

4
80

.0
0

0.
00

0
32

0.
00

0.
79

%
4

0.
00

A
P

P
LI

C
A

TO
R

'S
E

 
50

85
TI

FC
O

 IN
D

U
S

TR
IE

S
 

28
1-

57
16

00
0

TX
30

1.
61

1
30

1.
61

0.
00

0
30

1.
61

0.
75

%
1

19
.6

2
IN

C

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 
of

 1
53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

E
 

50
45

P
E

R
S

IT
S

70
3-

41
21

01
5

N
Y

$
30

0.
00

1
$

30
0.

00
$

0.
00

0
$

30
0.

00
0.

74
%

1
$

0.
00

S
O

FT
W

A
R

E
 IN

C
73

92
IN

 *
TU

R
N

E
R

 R
IS

K
 

51
0-

36
46

01
0

C
A

30
0.

00
1

30
0.

00
0.

00
0

30
0.

00
0.

74
%

1
0.

00
C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

82
49

N
A

TL
/P

A
D

G
E

T
91

3-
43

27
75

5
K

S
29

9.
00

1
29

9.
00

0.
00

0
29

9.
00

0.
74

%
1

0.
00

80
06

82
50

61
E

 
53

11
S

E
A

R
S

 R
O

E
B

U
C

K
N

E
W

A
R

K
C

A
29

7.
43

2
14

8.
72

0.
00

0
29

7.
43

0.
74

%
2

24
.5

6
16

98
E

 
50

65
N

E
W

A
R

K
IN

O
N

E
-U

S
77

3-
90

75
74

0
IL

29
6.

27
2

14
8.

14
0.

00
0

29
6.

27
0.

73
%

2
23

.8
7

00
00

01
09

17
61

E
O

FF
51

04
89

50
60

C
A

28
0.

32
1

28
0.

32
0.

00
0

28
0.

32
0.

70
%

1
24

.3
2

M
A

N
U

FA
C

TU
R

IN
G

48
14

A
TT

*W
E

B
S

IT
E

88
8-

93
2-

46
78

TX
28

0.
03

1
28

0.
03

0.
00

0
28

0.
03

0.
69

%
1

0.
00

S
O

LU
TI

O
N

S
E

 
50

99
S

E
TO

N
S

E
TO

N
.C

O
M

C
T

27
5.

92
1

27
5.

92
0.

00
0

27
5.

92
0.

68
%

1
0.

00
ID

E
N

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
P

R
D

73
61

JO
B

TA
R

G
E

T 
LL

C
86

0-
44

0-
06

35
C

T
27

5.
00

1
27

5.
00

0.
00

0
27

5.
00

0.
68

%
1

0.
00

59
99

W
E

C
O

 IN
D

U
S

TR
IE

S
 

70
7-

44
6-

66
61

C
A

27
0.

20
2

13
5.

10
0.

00
0

27
0.

20
0.

67
%

2
20

.7
0

LL
C

E
 

50
45

M
IC

R
O

S
O

FT
.C

O
M

80
0-

93
6-

35
00

W
A

25
9.

00
1

25
9.

00
0.

00
0

25
9.

00
0.

64
%

1
0.

00

pp
ly

52
00

LO
W

E
S

 #
01

13
2*

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
25

6.
58

5
51

.3
2

0.
00

0
25

6.
58

0.
64

%
5

22
.2

6
30

66
S

O
U

TH
W

E
S

80
0-

43
5-

97
92

TX
25

0.
00

1
25

0.
00

0.
00

0
25

0.
00

0.
62

%
1

0.
00

52
62

42
96

20
98

9
83

98
N

A
C

E
80

0-
79

7-
62

23
TX

25
0.

00
1

25
0.

00
0.

00
0

25
0.

00
0.

62
%

1
0.

00
IN

TE
R

N
A

TI
O

N
A

L
59

43
O

FF
IC

E
 M

A
X

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
24

2.
21

2
12

1.
11

0.
00

0
24

2.
21

0.
60

%
2

20
.9

9

82
99

A
S

TD
70

3-
68

3-
81

00
V

A
22

9.
00

1
22

9.
00

0.
00

0
22

9.
00

0.
57

%
1

0.
00

E
 

50
65

75
47

 R
O

Y
A

L
51

0-
89

59
81

0
C

A
21

5.
17

1
21

5.
17

0.
00

0
21

5.
17

0.
53

%
1

18
.6

7

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 
of

 1
53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

48
16

G
O

D
A

D
D

Y
.C

O
M

48
0-

50
58

85
5

A
Z

$
20

9.
97

1
$

20
9.

97
$

0.
00

0
$

20
9.

97
0.

52
%

1
$

0.
00

55
11

FR
E

M
O

N
T

N
E

W
A

R
K

C
A

20
4.

05
1

20
4.

05
0.

00
0

20
4.

05
0.

51
%

1
0.

00
C

H
R

Y
S

LE
R

 D
O

D
G

E
E

 
50

85
N

W
 P

U
M

P
 &

 E
Q

U
IP

 
50

32
05

21
98

O
R

20
4.

03
1

20
4.

03
0.

00
0

20
4.

03
0.

51
%

1
16

.8
5

FR
E

M
O

N
T

O
N

F.
86

41
W

A
TE

R
70

3-
68

42
42

8
V

A
20

2.
00

1
20

2.
00

0.
00

0
20

2.
00

0.
50

%
1

0.
00

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

FE
D

TN
17

99
G

A
TE

 H
O

U
S

E
 

80
5-

52
0-

27
14

C
A

20
1.

50
1

20
1.

50
0.

00
0

20
1.

50
0.

50
%

1
0.

00
S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

59
69

S
E

A
R

S
.C

O
M

 9
30

1 
80

0-
34

9-
43

58
IL

19
3.

79
2

96
.9

0
0.

00
0

19
3.

79
0.

48
%

2
0.

00
**

R
E

B
IL

L*
*

N
K

IN
58

12
B

R
O

N
C

O
 B

IL
LY

S
 

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
16

3.
13

1
16

3.
13

0.
00

0
16

3.
13

0.
40

%
1

0.
00

P
IZ

ZA
59

70
M

IC
H

A
E

LS
 S

TO
R

E
S

 
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

16
2.

38
2

81
.1

9
0.

00
0

16
2.

38
0.

40
%

2
0.

00
20

76
an

86
99

M
IS

A
C

71
4-

73
8-

53
09

C
A

16
0.

00
1

16
0.

00
0.

00
0

16
0.

00
0.

40
%

1
0.

00
59

69
S

E
A

R
S

.C
O

M
 9

30
1

80
0-

34
9-

43
58

IL
15

9.
25

1
15

9.
25

0.
00

0
15

9.
25

0.
40

%
1

12
.4

9
30

66
S

O
U

TH
W

E
S

80
0-

43
5-

97
92

TX
15

6.
20

1
15

6.
20

0.
00

0
15

6.
20

0.
39

%
1

0.
00

52
62

43
36

94
26

7
E

 
50

72
B

U
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
92

5-
86

61
41

2
C

A
14

8.
58

1
14

8.
58

0.
00

0
14

8.
58

0.
37

%
1

0.
00

S
A

FE
TY

 L
A

B
O

R
A

T
30

66
S

O
U

TH
W

E
S

80
0-

43
5-

97
92

TX
14

4.
20

1
14

4.
20

0.
00

0
14

4.
20

0.
36

%
1

0.
00

52
62

43
51

98
77

1
48

16
D

R
I*

A
O

M
E

I
O

R
D

E
R

FI
N

D
.C

O
M

M
N

13
9.

00
1

13
9.

00
0.

00
0

13
9.

00
0.

34
%

1
0.

00
P

A
R

TI
TI

O
N

 A
S

O
55

32
A

M
E

R
IC

A
S

-T
IR

E
-C

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
13

7.
09

1
13

7.
09

0.
00

0
13

7.
09

0.
34

%
1

11
.5

9
O

 C
A

N
-1

4
an

86
99

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

31
2-

97
7-

97
00

IL
13

5.
00

1
13

5.
00

0.
00

0
13

5.
00

0.
33

%
1

0.
00

FI
N

A
N

C
E

 O
FF

IC
73

42
D

O
M

Y
O

W
N

P
E

S
TC

O
86

6-
58

1-
73

78
G

A
12

0.
75

1
12

0.
75

0.
00

0
12

0.
75

0.
30

%
1

0.
00

N
TR

O
L.

C
O

M
E

 
50

45
D

M
I*

 D
E

LL
 

80
0-

98
1-

33
55

TX
12

0.
53

1
12

0.
53

0.
00

0
12

0.
53

0.
30

%
1

10
.4

6
K

-1
2/

G
O

V
T

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 
of

 1
53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

E
 

54
11

TA
R

G
E

T
FR

E
M

O
N

T
C

A
$

11
8.

81
1

$
11

8.
81

$
0.

00
0

$
11

8.
81

0.
29

%
1

$
9.

81
00

02
61

53
E

 
50

85
W

W
 G

R
A

IN
G

E
R

87
7-

20
22

59
4

P
A

11
4.

48
1

11
4.

48
0.

00
0

11
4.

48
0.

28
%

1
8.

89

E
 

50
85

R
E

E
D

 &
 G

R
A

H
A

M
, 

40
8-

28
71

40
0

C
A

11
4.

19
1

11
4.

19
0.

00
0

11
4.

19
0.

28
%

1
9.

19
IN

C
.

E
 

50
85

C
Y

B
E

R
W

E
LD

 C
O

M
80

0-
24

59
35

3
N

J
11

2.
90

1
11

2.
90

0.
00

0
11

2.
90

0.
28

%
1

0.
00

83
98

IS
A

91
9-

54
9-

84
11

N
C

11
0.

00
1

11
0.

00
0.

00
0

11
0.

00
0.

27
%

1
0.

00

48
16

A
M

A
ZO

N
.C

O
M

A
M

ZN
.C

O
M

/B
IL

L
W

A
10

9.
48

1
10

9.
48

0.
00

0
10

9.
48

0.
27

%
1

9.
50

59
99

FI
LT

E
R

S
 F

A
S

T
86

6-
43

83
45

8
N

C
10

7.
80

1
10

7.
80

0.
00

0
10

7.
80

0.
27

%
1

0.
00

E
 

50
72

W
E

S
TE

R
N

60
2-

43
9-

88
18

A
Z

10
2.

79
1

10
2.

79
0.

00
0

10
2.

79
0.

25
%

1
0.

00
E

N
G

R
A

V
E

R
S

 S
U

P
P

H
O

N
59

64
C

D
W

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

80
0-

80
0-

42
39

IL
10

0.
08

1
10

0.
08

0.
00

0
10

0.
08

0.
25

%
1

8.
68

89
31

Q
I M

A
C

R
O

S
88

8-
46

8-
15

37
C

O
99

.0
0

1
99

.0
0

0.
00

0
99

.0
0

0.
25

%
1

0.
00

73
99

TR
I S

TA
TE

 
51

0-
38

27
80

0
C

A
95

.0
0

1
95

.0
0

0.
00

0
95

.0
0

0.
24

%
1

0.
00

S
E

M
IN

A
R

55
33

FL
E

E
TP

R
ID

E
 7

20
80

0-
23

33
03

8
C

A
89

.7
3

2
44

.8
7

0.
00

0
89

.7
3

0.
22

%
2

0.
00

an
59

92
FR

E
M

O
N

T
51

0-
79

71
13

6
C

A
88

.2
4

1
88

.2
4

0.
00

0
88

.2
4

0.
22

%
1

0.
00

FL
O

W
E

R
S

...
A

LW
A

55
33

S
IX

 R
O

B
B

LE
E

S
 N

O
 8

O
A

K
LA

N
D

C
A

80
.0

4
1

80
.0

4
0.

00
0

80
.0

4
0.

20
%

1
6.

61

E
 

50
74

C
A

L-
S

TE
A

M
 2

50
4

51
0-

51
2-

77
00

C
A

80
.0

0
1

80
.0

0
0.

00
0

80
.0

0
0.

20
%

1
6.

61

an
56

21
W

IL
LI

A
M

S
O

N
-D

IC
K

I
81

7-
33

6-
72

01
TX

79
.6

9
1

79
.6

9
0.

00
0

79
.6

9
0.

20
%

1
0.

00
E

55
11

FR
E

M
O

N
T

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

70
.9

5
1

70
.9

5
0.

00
0

70
.9

5
0.

18
%

1
0.

00
C

H
E

V
R

O
LE

T
O

N
81

11
P

A
Y

P
A

L
40

2-
93

5-
77

33
C

A
55

.0
0

1
55

.0
0

0.
00

0
55

.0
0

0.
14

%
1

0.
00

*L
IE

B
E

R
TC

A
S

S

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 
of

 1
53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

E
 

50
21

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T 
O

FF
IC

E
 

40
8-

21
3-

17
90

C
A

$
52

.9
8

2
$

26
.4

9
$

0.
00

0
$

52
.9

8
0.

13
%

2
$

0.
00

G
R

O
U

P
 IN

C
55

11
M

IS
S

IO
N

 V
A

LL
E

Y
 

S
A

N
 J

O
S

E
C

A
50

.8
2

1
50

.8
2

0.
00

0
50

.8
2

0.
13

%
1

0.
00

FO
R

D
 P

A
R

TS
E

 
53

99
S

IG
N

 A
 R

A
M

A
U

N
IO

N
 C

IT
Y

C
A

50
.3

7
1

50
.3

7
0.

00
0

50
.3

7
0.

12
%

1
0.

00

E
 

50
74

FE
R

G
U

S
O

N
 E

N
T 

51
0-

78
2-

98
20

C
A

46
.0

4
1

46
.0

4
0.

00
0

46
.0

4
0.

11
%

1
0.

00
#6

64
E

 
54

11
TR

A
D

E
R

 J
O

E
'S

 
LI

V
E

R
M

O
R

E
C

A
45

.7
2

1
45

.7
2

0.
00

0
45

.7
2

0.
11

%
1

0.
00

#2
08

  Q
P

S
pp

ly
52

00
TH

E
 H

O
M

E
 D

E
P

O
T 

U
N

IO
N

 C
IT

Y
C

A
44

.8
1

1
44

.8
1

0.
00

0
44

.8
1

0.
11

%
1

3.
89

63
5

48
16

Y
A

H
O

O
40

8-
91

6-
21

49
C

A
41

.8
2

3
13

.9
4

0.
00

0
41

.8
2

0.
10

%
3

0.
00

*B
A

Y
A

R
E

A
B

IO
S

O
LI

E
 

50
46

P
E

TE
R

S
O

N
S

A
N

 L
E

A
N

D
R

O
C

A
40

.2
8

1
40

.2
8

0.
00

0
40

.2
8

0.
10

%
1

0.
00

TR
U

C
K

S
 IN

C
E

 
50

85
P

LA
S

TI
C

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
 

21
6-

36
77

00
0

O
H

34
.4

4
1

34
.4

4
0.

00
0

34
.4

4
0.

09
%

1
0.

00
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
H

O
N

59
65

O
FF

IC
E

 M
A

X
80

0-
28

3-
76

74
IL

31
.7

4
1

31
.7

4
0.

00
0

31
.7

4
0.

08
%

1
2.

75

O
55

32
B

O
R

G
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
81

8-
35

2-
87

17
C

A
28

.5
5

1
28

.5
5

0.
00

0
28

.5
5

0.
07

%
1

0.
00

E
 

50
46

M
O

TO
R

77
3-

77
4-

66
66

IL
24

.7
5

1
24

.7
5

0.
00

0
24

.7
5

0.
06

%
1

0.
00

C
A

P
A

C
IT

O
R

S
E

 
50

85
R

E
D

D
E

N
 M

A
R

IN
E

 
80

0-
42

69
28

4
W

A
19

.2
5

1
19

.2
5

0.
00

0
19

.2
5

0.
05

%
1

0.
00

S
U

P
P

LY
 IN

C
E

 
53

10
W

A
LM

A
R

T.
C

O
M

80
0-

96
6-

65
46

A
R

17
.9

4
1

17
.9

4
0.

00
0

17
.9

4
0.

04
%

1
0.

00

E
 

51
11

S
TA

P
LE

S
 D

IR
E

C
T

80
0-

33
33

33
0

M
A

16
.0

7
1

16
.0

7
0.

00
0

16
.0

7
0.

04
%

1
0.

53

59
12

C
V

S
 P

H
A

R
M

A
C

Y
 

FR
E

M
O

N
T

C
A

10
.3

4
1

10
.3

4
0.

00
0

10
.3

4
0.

03
%

1
0.

85
#9

09
9

E
 

50
46

C
A

B
LE

 M
O

O
R

E
 IN

C
51

0-
27

2-
02

18
C

A
4.

91
1

4.
91

0.
00

0
4.

91
0.

01
%

1
0.

41

55
11

M
IS

S
IO

N
 V

A
LL

E
Y

 
S

A
N

 J
O

S
E

C
A

0.
00

0
0.

00
40

.0
0

1
(4

0.
00

)
0.

00
%

1
0.

00

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 
of

 1
53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l

M
er

ch
an

t
N

br
 o

f
A

ve
ra

ge
N

br
 o

f
%

 o
f

M
er

ch
an

t
St

at
e/

D
eb

it
D

eb
it

Sp
en

d 
pe

r
C

re
di

t
C

re
di

t
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
N

br
 o

f
To

ta
l

M
C

C
M

er
ch

an
t N

am
e

C
ity

Pr
ov

in
ce

A
m

ou
nt

Tr
an

s
D

eb
it 

Tr
an

s
A

m
ou

nt
Tr

an
s

Sp
en

d
Sp

en
d

Tr
an

s
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x

FO
R

D
 P

A
R

TS
O

N
81

11
P

A
Y

P
A

L
40

29
35

77
33

C
A

0.
00

0
0.

00
55

.0
0

1
(5

5.
00

)
0.

00
%

1
0.

00
*L

IE
B

E
R

TC
A

S
S

an
56

21
W

IL
LI

A
M

S
O

N
-D

IC
K

I
FO

R
T 

W
O

R
TH

TX
0.

00
0

0.
00

57
.7

9
1

(5
7.

79
)

0.
00

%
1

0.
00

E
an

56
99

W
O

R
K

 W
O

R
LD

 
N

E
W

A
R

K
C

A
0.

00
0

0.
00

11
9.

82
1

(1
19

.8
2)

0.
00

%
1

0.
00

N
E

W
A

R
K

57
32

LE
D

TR
O

N
IC

S
 IN

C
.

TO
R

R
A

N
C

E
C

A
0.

00
0

0.
00

21
9.

58
1

(2
19

.5
8)

(0
.5

4%
)

1
0.

00
59

69
S

E
A

R
S

.C
O

M
 9

30
1

80
0-

34
9-

43
58

IL
0.

00
0

0.
00

24
3.

64
3

(2
43

.6
4)

(0
.6

0%
)

3
0.

00

$4
1,

53
8.

46
$1

,2
28

.1
7

$4
0,

31
0.

29
18

4
$

88
4.

51

:  
   

   
 1

12

E
nd

 o
f R

ep
or

t

D
et

ai
l /

 tr
ou

ng
1 

/ 1
0/

09
/2

01
4 

17
:2

4:
08

 

of
 1

53



S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
R

ep
or

t D
at

e:
 1

0/
09

/2
01

4
d 

A
na

ly
si

s 
- D

et
ai

l O
ut

pu
t P

ar
am

et
er

 P
ag

e

C
yc

le
 C

lo
se

 D
at

e 
R

an
ge

:
07

/2
01

4 
to

 0
9/

20
14

R
ep

or
t T

yp
e:

D
et

ai
l

M
er

ch
an

t P
ro

fil
e 

So
ur

ce
:

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

M
er

ch
an

t N
am

es
:

A
ll

M
er

ch
an

t C
at

eg
or

y 
C

od
e 

G
ro

up
:

A
ll

M
er

ch
an

t S
ta

te
s:

A
ll

So
rt

 R
ep

or
t B

y:
(1

) T
ot

al
 S

pe
nd

, (
2)

 N
o 

S
or

t, 
(3

) N
o 

S
or

t, 
(4

) N
o 

S
or

t
B

re
ak

/S
ub

to
ta

l L
ev

el
:

N
o 

B
re

ak
/S

ub
to

ta
l

ch
y 

Po
si

tio
n:

B
an

k
A

ge
nt

C
om

pa
ny

D
iv

is
io

n
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

14
25

31
35

51
75

6
A

ll
A

ll

s 
- D

et
ai

l /
 tr

ou
ng

1 
/ 1

0/
09

/2
01

4 
17

:2
4:

08
 / 

M
er

ch
an

tS
pe

nd
A

na
ly

si
sR

ep
or

t1
41

28
93

44
60

45
_2

70
80

_8
48

12
99

59
04

75
47

5 

of
 1

53



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: October 20, 2014 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11.d. – Meeting of October 27, 2014 
  Information Only: Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects

Recommendation

Information Only.

Background

In June 2014, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program budget for FY’15 
in the amount of $14.87 million for the design and construction of 21 projects.

These 21 projects are further ranked as Priority 1 and 2 projects based on a criteria 
prepared by staff and approved by the Executive Team. A copy of the criteria used to 
prioritize the projects is attached for your reference.

The status of the Priority 1 CIP projects is reviewed by the Executive Team at the end of 
each quarter and a copy of the status report is attached for the Board’s review. For 
FY’15, nine (9) projects are ranked as Priority 1 projects and the remaining twelve (12)
are ranked as Priority 2 projects.

Also attached is a tabular summary of the number and nature of the ongoing CIP 
projects at the District during FY’15. 

PRE/SG;ks

Attachments: Priority 1 CIP Project Criteria
Priority 2 & 3 CIP Project Criteria
Priority 1 CIP Projects Status Report
Summary of CIP Projects for FY’15

Page 137 of 153



PRIORITY 1 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA

Priority 1 Projects: 

1. Project to repair or prevent an imminent critical infrastructure failure that could 
result in a threat to the public, or result in permit non-compliance.

2. A project designed to address public health and safety or employee health 
and safety.

3. Project to provide additional capacity in order to allow connection to the 
District system or to prevent a potential wet weather overflow from occurring.

4. Projects that have a deadline tied to receiving a loan or grant funding.

5. Projects where we have made a timeline commitment to a customer or other 
outside stakeholder.

6. A project in which the District may suffer financial losses or claims should the 
project be delayed.

7. A project which is part of a sequence of projects whose delay could result in 
delays to other projects at USD or other agencies.

8. A project in which an internal commitment has been made to provide a facility 
that significantly impacts another group from efficiently and effectively 
carrying out their core work.  (Not a “nice to have” type project)

These criteria can apply to a study, design, or construction project.

Page 138 of 153



PRIORITY 2 & 3 CIP PROJECT CRITERIA

Priority 2 Projects

1. These are planned projects related to the replacement of electrical and 
mechanical equipment identified by the Plant Master Plan – this 
equipment is not in imminent danger of failure but needs to be replaced at 
a future date.

2. These are planned pipeline rehab/replacement projects that are identified 
either by the Master Plan or by the Maintenance staff and need to be 
completed to improve the condition of existing sewers to safeguard 
against potential maintenance problems – these pipelines are not in 
imminent danger of failure.

3. These projects do not have any immediate negative impacts on either 
other agencies or other projects.

4. Examples: Blacow Road Sewer Replacement, Cast Iron Pipe 
Replacement, Thickener Mechanism 3&4 Replacement, Rehab of 
Clarifiers 5&6.

Priority 3 Projects

1. These are capacity projects identified by the master plans that will address 
future capacity needs of the District.

2. These projects are place holders and need to be defined at a future date
3. The District will not suffer any financial loss or claim, if these projects are 

delayed.
4. Examples: Cedar Relief Sewer, Hetch Hetchy Relief Sewer, Digester 

No. 7, Secondary Clarifiers 7 & 8. 

Page 139 of 153



Pr
io

rit
y 

1 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r F
Y 

15
 –

 S
ta

tu
s 

R
ep

or
t

Pr
oj

ec
t

Pl
an

ne
d 

M
ile

st
on

es
St

at
us

 a
fte

r 1
st

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 2

nd

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 3

rd

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 4

th

Q
ua

rt
er

1
A

lv
ar

ad
o-

N
ile

s 
B

lv
d.

S
ew

er
 R

eh
ab

C
om

pl
et

e 
de

si
gn

 b
y

M
ay

, 
op

en
 b

id
s 

by
 J

un
e

20
15

.
50

%
 d

es
ig

n 
du

e
N

ov
em

be
r 2

1,
 2

01
4.

2
Ja

rv
is

 A
ve

. S
ew

er
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
C

om
pl

et
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

by
Ja

nu
ar

y
20

15
.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
45

%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
3

P
in

e 
St

. E
as

em
en

t
C

om
pl

et
e 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

de
si

gn
 

an
d 

be
gi

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

y 
Ju

ne
20

15
.

D
es

ig
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 is

 
se

le
ct

ed
 a

nd
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 

un
de

rw
ay

 fo
r t

as
k 

or
de

r t
o 

ev
al

ua
te

 
pi

pe
 b

rid
ge

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
.

4
U

pp
er

 H
et

ch
 H

et
ch

y
S

ew
er

 R
eh

ab
C

om
pl

et
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

by
A

pr
il

20
15

.
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

of
 2

4
an

d 
27

-in
ch

 p
ip

e 
in

 
Fr

em
on

ti
s 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
65

%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
5

Fr
em

on
t &

 P
as

eo
 

P
ad

re
 L

ift
 S

ta
tio

n 
In

te
rn

al
 L

ift
 P

um
ps

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t b

y 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

, C
om

pl
et

e 
de

si
gn

 b
y

Ju
ne

 2
01

5

C
on

di
tio

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f 

pu
m

ps
is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
R

FP
 to

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

fo
r d

es
ig

n 
se

rv
ic

es
w

ill
 b

e
is

su
ed

 in
 

O
ct

ob
er

.
6

W
et

 W
ea

th
er

 F
lo

w
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

S
ite

 U
se

 S
tu

dy
:

P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
to

 U
S

D
 B

oa
rd

 
by

 M
ay

, 2
01

5
C

om
pl

et
e 

dr
af

t r
ep

or
tb

y 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5.

K
ic

ko
ff 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
as

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

on
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

nd
.

W
or

ks
ho

p 
N

o.
 1

 is
 

sc
he

du
le

d
fo

r
N

ov
em

be
r 1

8th
.

P
ag

e 
14

0 
of

 1
53



Pr
oj

ec
t

Pl
an

ne
d 

M
ile

st
on

es
St

at
us

 a
fte

r 1
st

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 2

nd

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 3

rd

Q
ua

rt
er

St
at

us
 a

fte
r 4

th

Q
ua

rt
er

7
C

og
en

er
at

io
n

P
ro

je
ct

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
by

D
ec

em
be

r2
01

4.
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
en

gi
ne

 
ge

ne
ra

to
r s

ys
te

m
 is

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

  
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l t
es

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
en

gi
ne

 
ge

ne
ra

to
r a

nd
 

di
ge

st
er

 g
as

 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g 
sy

st
em

s 
ha

s 
be

gu
n.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
94

%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
8

Th
ic

ke
ne

r C
on

tro
l 

B
ld

g.
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 

P
ro

je
ct

C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
E

le
ct

ric
al

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
(s

tru
ct

ur
e 

on
ly

) b
y 

Ju
ne

 
20

15
.

C
om

pl
et

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 
m

aj
or

 e
le

ct
ric

al
 w

or
k 

by
 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
5.

 

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
by

N
ov

em
be

r2
01

6.

E
xc

av
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 T

P
S

 p
ip

el
in

e 
tre

nc
h 

an
d 

el
ec

tri
ca

l 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

un
da

tio
n

is
 c

om
pl

et
e.

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k 

is
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
5%

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

9
D

ig
es

te
r N

o.
 5

 R
eh

ab
C

om
pl

et
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

by
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
5

R
em

ov
al

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

se
al

an
t b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

do
m

e 
an

d 
co

nc
re

te
 

ta
nk

 w
al

l a
nd

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fo
rs

te
el

 
do

m
e 

su
pp

or
ts

ha
s 

be
gu

n.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
or

k 
is

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

12
%

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

P
ag

e 
14

1 
of

 1
53



SU
M

M
A

R
Y 

O
F 

C
IP

 P
R

O
JE

C
TS

 F
O

R
 F

Y’
15

 

Ty
pe

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
N

um
be

r o
f P

ro
je

ct
s

N
am

es
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

s

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 

Si
x

1.
A

lv
ar

ad
o-

N
ile

s 
B

lv
d.

 S
ew

er
 R

eh
ab

2.
Ja

rv
is

 A
ve

. S
ew

er
 R

el
oc

at
io

n
3.

N
ew

ar
k 

B
ac

ky
ar

d 
S

ew
er

 R
el

oc
at

io
n

4.
P

in
e 

St
re

et
 E

as
em

en
t R

ep
ai

r
5.

U
pp

er
 H

et
ch

 H
et

ch
y 

S
ew

er
 R

eh
ab

 P
ro

je
ct

6.
V

ea
sy

 S
tre

et
 S

ew
er

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
ys

te
m

 
Fi

ve
1.

B
oy

ce
 R

oa
d 

Li
ft 

St
at

io
n

2.
C

he
rry

 S
tre

et
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

3.
Fr

em
on

t &
 P

P
 L

S
 In

te
rn

al
 L

ift
 P

um
ps

4.
S

te
ve

ns
on

 P
ro

pe
rty

 B
ac

ku
p 

C
om

m
 T

ow
er

5.
W

et
 W

ea
th

er
 F

lo
w

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

Tr
ea

tm
en

t S
ys

te
m

 
Te

n
1.

A
er

at
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 R

eh
ab

2.
C

og
en

er
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

3.
D

ig
es

te
r N

o.
 5

 R
eh

ab
4.

G
en

er
at

or
 C

on
tro

ls
 U

pg
ra

de
5.

M
C

C
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
, P

ha
se

 II
I 

6.
P

la
nt

 F
ac

ilit
ie

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct
7.

60
” P

rim
ar

y 
E

ffl
ue

nt
 P

ip
e 

R
eh

ab
8.

S
lu

dg
e 

D
ry

in
g 

(B
A

C
W

A
 S

tu
dy

)
9.

Th
ic

ke
ne

r C
on

tro
l B

ld
g 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ro

je
ct

10
.W

at
er

 S
to

ra
ge

 T
an

k 
an

d 
W

el
l

P
ag

e 
14

2 
of

 1
53



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: October 20, 2014 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11.e. – Meeting of October 27, 2014 
Information Only: First Quarterly Report on Capital Improvement 
Program for FY 15

Recommendation:

Information only

Background:

In June 2014, the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for 
FY’15 in the amount of $14.87 million for the design and construction of 21 projects. 
The first quarter expenditures for FY’15 are shown on the attached budget projection 
graphs. These graphs depict actual expenditures versus approved budget for the 
Capacity Fund 900, the Renewal and Replacement Fund 800 as well as for both funds, 
combined.

The total CIP expenditure up to September 30, 2014, was above the projections for the 
first quarter by approximately $35,000. The main project that incurred more than the 
projected expenditures is the Thickener Control Bldg. project, while the Jarvis Ave. SS 
Replacement project incurred less than the projected expenditures.

Page 143 of 153



Agenda Item No. 11.e.
Meeting of October 27, 2014
Page 2 

These primary variances are tabulated as follows: 

Project Variance at the 
end of 1st
Quarter 

(x $1000)

Comments

Thickener Control Bldg.
Modifications

+165 Early start of excavation 
work.

Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement 
(Misc. SS Spot Repairs Ph 5)

- 130 Late start of construction 
work

Total Variance for the 1st Qtr. + 35
  
In addition to the two (2) projects listed above, the following projects will be either in 
design or in construction during FY’15: 

1. Alvarado-Niles Blvd. Sewer Rehab  
2. Pine St. Easement
3. Upper Hetch Hetchy Sewer Rehab
4. Fremont & Paseo Padre Lift Station Internal Lift Pumps
5. Wet Weather Flow Management - Site Use Study
6. Cogeneration
7. Digester No. 5 Rehab

In addition, twelve (12) other smaller projects will be either in design or in construction 
during FY’15. 

PRE/SG;ks 

Attachments: Budget Projection Graphs

Page 144 of 153



 
 

2,
04

5

6,
46

0

8,
97

5

11
,6

30

2,
10

7

$0

$2
,0

00

$4
,0

00

$6
,0

00

$8
,0

00

$1
0,

00
0

$1
2,

00
0

$1
4,

00
0 Ju

l 1
4

Se
pt

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

M
ar

-1
5

Ju
n-

15

Fu
nd

 8
00

 B
ud

ge
t

Fu
nd

 8
00

 A
ct

ua
l

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 R

&
R 

CI
P 

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 R

ep
or

t F
Y’

15
 –

 B
ud

ge
t P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Gr

ap
hs

 
P

ag
e 

14
5 

of
 1

53



 

52
3

1,
53

3

2,
40

0

3,
24

3

49
5 

 

1 
$0

$5
00

$1
,0

00

$1
,5

00

$2
,0

00

$2
,5

00

$3
,0

00

$3
,5

00 Ju
l 1

4
Se

pt
-1

4
D

ec
-1

4
M

ar
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Fu
nd

 9
00

 B
ud

ge
t

Fu
nd

 9
00

 A
ct

ua
l

  

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 

CI
P 

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 R

ep
or

t F
Y’

15
 –

 B
ud

ge
t P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Gr

ap
hs

 
P

ag
e 

14
6 

of
 1

53



 
 

0 

2,
56

8

7,
99

3

11
,3

75
 

14
,8

73

2,
60

2

$0

$2
,0

00

$4
,0

00

$6
,0

00

$8
,0

00

$1
0,

00
0

$1
2,

00
0

$1
4,

00
0

$1
6,

00
0 Ju

l 1
4

Se
pt

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

M
ar

-1
5

Ju
n-

15

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t

To
ta

l A
ct

ua
l

   

To
ta

l C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

To
ta

l C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

CI
P 

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 R

ep
or

t F
Y’

15
 –

 B
ud

ge
t P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
Gr

ap
hs

 
P

ag
e 

14
7 

of
 1

53



Alameda County Water District: 
Three running for two board seats
Posted 10/17/2014

By Chris De Benedetti

The Argus
POSTED:   10/17/2014 04:21:39 PM PDT
FREMONT -- As the drought continues, utility leaders have struggled to provide water 
despite diminishing supplies, and to pay for system upgrades with reduced revenue.

Those are some of the problems that Alameda County Water District board of directors 
must solve as the agency continues to serve 336,000 people in Fremont, Newark and Union 
City.

Two incumbents, Paul Sethy and Judy Huang, are trying to fend off challenger Eric Tsai, to 
keep their board seats in a race won by the top two finishers.

Huang said the district's top priorities include delivering safe and reliable water at a lower 
cost, encouraging conservation, and replacing old pipes and water mains.

"We need to invest in our infrastructure so we can respond quickly to a natural disaster," 
she said. "What happened in Napa this year (when more than 100 water mains broke after 
an earthquake) proved that."

Huang also wants the agency to operate more efficiently and minimize future rate increases.
She said she is proud that labor contract negotiations led to union employees contributing 
more to their health care costs. They will pay 0.25 percent, Huang said. "Yes, it's a quarter-
percent, but it's better than nothing," she said. "It's a beginning." 

She says her experience as an engineer and a board incumbent will be crucial, especially 
because district general manager Walt Wadlow has retired, making 2015 a year of 
transition.

"Is this a good time to have a new general manager and a new board member?" she said.

Tsai, a 28-year-old challenger, said the district should find a way stop the rate increases the 
board approved in each of the past 12 years. 

Page 148 of 153



"Those increases have significantly hurt the poor and senior citizens on a fixed income," he 
said. 

Tsai said that the board must spend more wisely, noting that it allocated $280,000 for a 
water district history book as it raised rates on customers.

He also wants to make the district's actions more transparent as it decides annual budgets 
and negotiates employee contracts. "It's pretty hard to find their financial reports on their 
website," he said. "I would make the public part of the process because they're the ones 
paying the bills."

Tsai said the district fulfills most of its mission to provide safe, affordable and reliable 
water. "The affordable part is where I have a problem with them," he said. 

Sethy says the district must continue making seismic improvements to its pipes and water 
mains so it can continue supplying safe water, even after a natural disaster.

"We can pay a small price today or a major price tomorrow," he said, noting that the 
Hayward Fault runs under the agency's 900 miles of pipelines and is due for a major quake. 
"This is a race against time."

Sethy said it takes expertise and vision to run the water district, especially when planning 
for complex projects such as Union City's Station Center or Fremont's Innovation District in 
Warm Springs. 

He said his experience in founding a successful tech company and managing people and 
finances at Xerox makes him the best candidate. 

Sethy said he strongly disagrees with Tsai's criticism, saying the board's finances are well-
managed. Sethy said the district saved millions in 2011, for example, when it refinanced 
some of its debt, freeing money to help pay for badly needed seismic upgrades. 

"I'm proud that this board has the guts to move forward and invest in the reliability of the 
system," he said. "Previous generations built this system. Now we have to rebuild it."

Contact Chris De Benedetti at 510-293-2480. Follow him at Twitter.com/cdebenedetti. 

Candidates for Alameda County Water District Board

Judy Huang
Age: 45
Education: Bachelor's, chemical engineering

Page 149 of 153



Occupation: Environmental engineer

Paul Sethy
Age: 54
Education: High school graduate. Attended UC Berkeley
Occupation: CEO of technology engineering company

Eric Tsai
Age: 28 
Education: Bachelor's, business economics
Occupation: Financial analyst

Page 150 of 153



Page 151 of 153



Page 152 of 153



Page 153 of 153



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager 
District Engineer 

David M. O'Hara 
Attorney

5072 Benson Road Union City, CA  94587-2508 
P. O. Box 5050 Union City, CA  94587-8550 

(510) 477-7500     FAX (510) 477-7501 
www.unionsanitary.com 

DATE: October 24, 2013 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
 Rich Cortes, Business Services Work Group Manager 
 Richard Scobee, GIS/Database Administrator

SUBJECT: Amended Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of October 27, 2014 
Information Item: GIS JPA FY15 ADJUSTMENT 

Recommendation

Information Only 

Information

At the Budget and Finance Committee on Thursday October 23, 2014 it was suggested 
that this item be changed from a Motion to an Information Item with no change in the 
adopted budget.

The current GIS JPA FY15 project budget includes $24,000 to purchase new Aerial Photos from 
Alameda County. However Alameda County entered into a 3-year subscription agreement with 
Pictometry for new Aerial photos and the Pictometry Online (POL) service which provides the 
Pictometry imagery software system as an Internet web browser application. Through the 
Southern Alameda County GIS Authority (SACGISA), USD will purchase the 3-year subscription 
service from Alameda Country. USD will also be provided a copy of the new Aerial Photos to 
use in-house. The cost to USD is $8,000 per year for FY15 to FY17. 

SACGISA also intends to contract Pictometry to digitize Building Outlines from the new Aerial 
Photos. The one-time cost to USD will be no more than $8,400. 

In total there is a net $7,600 reduction of the current FY15 GIS JPA project. 

PRE/RC/RS



1

5000 Hopyard Road, Suite 335    Pleasanton, CA  94588    Tel: 925.734.6600    Fax: 925.734.6611    www.vtdcpa.com

F R E S N O  !! L A G U N A  H I L L S  ! P A L O  A L T O  ! P L E A S A N T O N  ! R A N C H O  C U C A M O N G A  ! R I V E R S I D E  ! S A C R A M E N T O

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District
Union City, California 

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Union Sanitary District as of and for the years then 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Union 
Sanitary District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We did not audit the 
equity investment in the East Bay Dischargers Authority which represents 1.6 percent and 1.8 percent, respectively, 
of the assets and net position of the Union Sanitary District.  The statements for which the equity investment is 
derived were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to 
the amount included for the equity investment, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.   Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.



2

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Union Sanitary District as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting systems provided by 
the State Comptroller’s Office for Special Districts.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress for pension and retiree health benefit plan, as listed 
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, statistical section and the financial 
information listed as supplementary information in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 21, 2014, on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Pleasanton, California
October 21, 2014


